


CASE NUMBER: 23-009924

INCIDENT REPORT

SAINT PAUL POLICE DEPARTMENT

06/05/2024, 15:55

Staff Involved

Officer Type BWC ICC Resistance Encounter Force Used Vehicle Pursuit
Benner, Donovan (43952) Submitter, Primary Yes 1781 No No No
Berg, Jordan (49695) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Bertholf, Richard (50152) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Besaw, Kevin (50151) Submitter, Primary Yes 2178 No No No
Betsinger, Andy (50300) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Bragg, Colby (73500) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Byrne, Christopher (88700) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Capecchi, Michael (92251) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Cha, Noushue (111999) Submitter, Primary Yes 1965 No No No
Christiansen, Devin (114717)  Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Conrad, John (125630) Submitter, Primary Yes 2093 No No No
Cruz, Alec (135502) Submitter, Primary, Assisting Yes 2171 No No No
Dean, Francine (148757) Submitter, Primary Yes 1571 No No No
Dejong, Todd (280386) Submitter, Assisting, Primary Yes 2171 No No No
Diaz, Thomas (152920) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Giang, Bryan (225899) Submitter, Assisting, Primary Yes No No No
Goss, Logan (235060) Submitter, Primary Yes 2183 No No No
Her, Keng (277005) Submitter, Assisting, Primary Yes 2172 No No No
Higgins, Emily (284930) Submitter, Assisting, Primary Yes 2179 No No No
Hull, Cortez (303900) Submitter, Primary Yes 2181 No No No
Jaworski, Eric (316001) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No

Jenkins, Christopher (317259) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No

Johnson, Jacob (323455) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Kolodge, Patrick (358550) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Kosloske, Megan (114701) Submitter, Primary Yes 1683 No No No
Kreimer, Kirk (367070) Submitter, Primary Yes 1685 No No No
Lamb, Lorenzo (381005) Submitter, Primary Yes 1761 No No No
Larkin, Andrew (384490) Submitter, Primary Yes 2185 No No No
Lee, Jim (391600) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Lee, Kou (391607) Submitter, Primary Yes 2182 No No No
Lee, Peng (391860) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Lego, Joshua (392000) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Lentsch, Stephen (393400) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Lokhorst, Robert (406600) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Mcmanus, Sean (432100) Submitter, Primary Yes 1781 No No No
Notthakun, Mon (499409) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Onnen, Matthew (515000) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Phan, Hoang (541801) Submitter, Primary No 1580 No No No

about:blank 2/137

¥26600-€C “IHIINON dSVD

01166 :4q pajuLig



CASE NUMBER: 23-009924

INCIDENT REPORT

SAINT PAUL POLICE DEPARTMENT

06/05/2024, 15:55

for Aggravated Assault.

Narrative :

about:blank

Reschke, Ryley (569285) Submitter, Primary Yes 1784 No No No
Rhiel, Mitchell (509849) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Rodriguez, Santiago (580500) Submitter, Primary Yes 2187 No No No
Rooney, Colleen (434970) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Sand, Trygve (596000) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Sauer, Joseph (599825) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Shead, Lamichael (631251) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Siegfried, Adam (636450) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Skeate, Brian (638389) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Smith, Abigail (640797) Submitter, Assisting, Primary Yes No No No
Suon, Peov (669001) Submitter, Primary Yes 1784 No No No
Vang, Dao (706833) Submitter, Primary Yes 2172 No No No
Vixayvong, Sayareth (710800) Submitter, Primary No No No No
Xiong, Carrie (750350) Submitter, Primary, Assisting Yes 2179 No No No
Xiong, Xai (750062) Submitter, Primary Yes 1782 No No No
Yager, Avery (750417) Submitter, Primary Yes 1885 No No No
Yang, Richard (750428) Submitter, Primary Yes No No No
Kempe, Michael (343548) Primary Yes No No No
Cheshier, Patrick (113600) Submitter
Chung, Phuong (115900) Submitter
Dagenais, Chad (141500) Submitter
Frederickson, Emilee (211702) Submitter
Larson, Amber (384515) Submitter
Nyhus, Joshua (499606) Submitter
Oesterreich, Richard (504301) Submitter
Schwab, Jeffrey (621400) Submitter
Borowicz, Austin (68089) Assisting 2182 No No No
Lee, Va (391899) Assisting 1784 No No No
Lemon, Alex (392804) Assisting 2183 No No No
Peterson, Michael (534353) Assisting 1685 No No No
Tschida, Michael (694455) Assisting 2185 No No No
Zink, Robert (756900) Assisting 1580 No No No
Narratives
Narrative 1 Created by: KREIMER, KIRK (367070) 01/18/2023, 22:23
Synopsis :

On 1/18/23 at approximately 1615 hours, Officers responded to 270 Lexington Parkway N for an assault call. Officers found an
juvenile male shot in the head. Victim was transported to the hospital and is currently in critical condition. The suspect Binford,
Exavir 4/11/96 was located at his residence in East St. Paul, arrested without incident and later booked into Ramsey County LEC
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CASE NUMBER: 23-009924 06/05/2024, 15:55
% SAINT PAUL

- POLICE INCIDENT REPORT

SAINT PAUL POLICE DEPARTMENT

We stayed on scene near the south entrance to the parking of the Rec Center until we were relieved by Officers ZINK/PHAN.

Narrative 6 Created by: CRUZ, ALEC (135502) 01/18/2023, 17:59

Synopsis :
Supplement report.
Narrative :

On 1/18/2023 around 1620 hours SQD 382 (Off. A. Cruz/Off. DeJong) responded to 270 Lexington Parkway to assist West officers
with a shooting.

Upon our arrival we were tasked with finding and interviewing potential withesses on scene from the people gathered inside the rec
center. |, Off. A. Cruz, attempted to locate withesses to the incident with negative results. | then signed the crime scene log. |
stayed on scene to help facilitate people leaving the rec center until | was advised | was no longer needed on scene. | then signed
out of the crime scene log.

Narrative 7 Created by: DEJONG, TODD (280386) 01/18/2023, 17:59

Synopsis :
Supplement report.
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 at approximately 1612 hours squad 382 (DeJong/ A. Cruz) responded to Jimmy Lee Recreation center at 270
Lexington Pkwy for a report of an assault. A male victim was reported to be shot in the parking lot. Prior to our arrival responding
officers aired suspect information and responded to the victim who was transported from the scene by ambulance. See supplement
reports for further details.

Upon arrival we assisted in speaking with possible witnesses at the scene as well as staff and patrons of the rec center. | spoke
with a female, later identified by name and date of birth as Alisa Jae Logan (DOB/200 ), who was sitting at a table inside the
building. Logan stated she she works at the center and did not witness the incident. Logan stated she was in her officer and walked
into the main lobby shortly after the assault. Logan saw a group of kids in the entry way but could not provide suspect information.
Logan stated her mothers vehicle was outside in the parking lot and she was waiting to leave the scene. Logan was advised of the
severity of the incident and advised to call for a ride out of the scene.

| spoke with a male, Later identified as Chevy David Midas (DOB/197 ), who was standing in the lobby and stated he arrived
on scene shortly after the assault took place. Midas stated he was driving west bound on Marshall Ave prior to turning into the
parking lot. When Midas parked his vehicle, MN Lic/ NJY009 a 2013 Volkswagen Passat dark blue in color, in the parking lot he
observed a male laying on the ground and two groups of kid standing on the east side of the parking lot and near the entry of the
building. Midas did not know what was going on so he got out of his vehicle and walked into the address. Midas was not able to
provide suspect information at this time. Midas was advised of the severity of the incident and agreed to call for ride.

We then assisted in maintaining scene security until we were relieved by west officers and Squad 108 (Sgt. Shead)

See full reports for further details.

Narrative 8 Created by: PHAN, HOANG (541801) 01/18/2023, 18:03

about:blank

Synopsis :
Supplemental report.
Narrative :

On 01-18-23, We Squad 150 (Phan/Zink) assisted other squads at 270 Lexington Pkwy N (Jimmy Lee Rec Center) on the report of
an aggravated assault. Upon arrival to the area, we were requested to meet with the resident at 1056 Marshall Avenue for possible
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CASE NUMBER: 23-009924 06/05/2024, 15:55
SAINT PAUL

POLICE INCIDENT REPORT

service it purpese SAINT PAUL POLICE DEPARTMENT

video footage of the incident.

We met with the resident who identified herself as Maggie Lynn Barnes (DOB/195 )- Barnes advised that before the
incident, she saw a group of kids at the Jimmy Lee Rec Parking lot gathering. Barnes advised that she did not see or hear any
gunfire but noticed a male wearing dark clothing and a black jacket covering a hand running Eastbound on Marshall Avenue and
then South on Oxford Street. Barnes did not see anything else.

Barnes advised that she has possible video footage of the incident from her Brinks security Camera. The camera is located at her
front doorway facing Northbound towards the Jimmy Lee Rec Parking Lot.

Barnes was not able to access the footage at this time and that she would contact police again when she was able to.
We advised SGT SHEAD of the information from Barnes.

We held the Jimmy Lee Rec Parking lot securing the scene of the crime from our area until we were relived of our duty. We did not
make any contact with any other witnesses of the incident.

See Supplemental and Original report for more information.

Narrative 9 Created by: LARKIN, ANDREW (384490) 01/18/2023, 18:03

Synopsis :

Supplemental Report

Narrative :

On 1-18-2023 Squad 138T (Larkin, Tschida) responded to 270 Lexington Parkway N about a individual that was shot.

When we arrived | (Larkin) observed the victim on the ground in the parking lot with two other people (unidentified) that were
rendering aid. People were saying that the victim had been shot in the head. There was also other people around in the parking lot.
One of the individuals there had a sweatshirt placed on the victims head. | took over with pressure to the victims head to stop the
bleeding while OFC Tschida started gathering information. The victim was breathing and seemed to be semi-conscious. There was
a lot of dark red blood coming from the victims head.

Officer Tschida was told that the shooter was an "Xavier," BM wearing a "Jimmy Lee" shirt. It was reported that XAVIER was an
employee.

Medics arrived and placed the victim into the back of the ambulance. After stabilizing the victim squad 138T followed the medics to
the hospital were the victim was treated by hospital staff.

Narrative 10 Created by: LAMB, LORENZO (381005) 01/18/2023, 18:21

Synopsis :
Supplemental report.
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 at approximately 1612 hours, | squad 279 (L. Lamb) responded to 270 Lexington Pkwy N (Jimmy Lee Rec Center)
on an Assault.

Prior to my arrival, West squads were on scene as the victim was shot in the head and the suspect was possibly still in the area.
Squad 107 (Sgt. Diaz) aired for squads coming to the scene to go and speak with witnesses at the Rec Center.

Upon arrival, | saw multiple people standing inside and outside of the building. | asked a few people who were on scene if they saw
the assault happen and they stated that they did not. | later spoke to a juvenile female later verbally identified as”
* (DOB , Ph:M) who stated that she knew the victim and overheard the argument before the
assault happened. state at a there was a fight between two girls that happened on the southeast side of the
building near the intersection of Marshall Ave and Lexington Pkwy. Hstated that there was grown man that works at the

Rec Center who was cussing at other kids and eventually locked the doors on them. stated that the victim got into an
argument with the suspect, and she overheard the suspect say "If | got to kill somebody [ will. | don't give a fuck".

about:blank 71137
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CASE NUMBER: 23-009924 06/05/2024, 15:55

INCIDENT REPORT

SAINT PAUL POLICE DEPARTMENT

Synopsis :

Booked: Exavir Dwayne Binford (26 Y/O male).
Charge: Assault-1st Degree-Great Bodily Harm (Felony).

Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 at approximately 1636 hours, We, Squad 384 (OFC.E.HIGGINS/OFC.C.XIONG) responded to the area of 1663
Stillwater Ave E to canvas the area for the suspect from the incident that occurred at 270 Lexington Parkway.

Upon arrival, we parked our squad car (2179) at Germain St and Stillwater Ave to watch for the suspect, Exavir Dwayne Binford
(DOB/1996-04-11), and any vehicles he was registered to.

At approximately 1705 hours, we noticed Ramsey County Sherriff Office (RCSO) Deputy squads activate their emergency lights
near 1663 Stillwater Ave E. One of the Deputies aired out over the radio that they had the suspect in custody and recovered a
firearm.

We drove to where the Deputies were, | got out of the squad and as | was walking, | saw a Deputy holding a firearm and he
handed it to a St. Paul Police Gang Officer. | continued walking and saw Exavir in custody with RCSO Deputies. We decided to put
Exavir in the rear of our squad car (2179), | escorted Exavir to the front of our squad and searched him incident to arrest. A female
RSCO Deputy took out Exavir's cell phone and other belongings when she was standing on his right side. | re-searched Exavir
after the RSCO Deputy searched him. While | was searching Exavir, | noticed his jacket was ripped and | pointed it out to him.
Exavir stated something along the lines of "yeah because | was attacked". | handcuffed Exavir, checked tightness and double
locked, and took off the Deputy's handcuffs. | placed Exavir in the rear of our squad car.

Without asking Exavir any questions, he mentioned that he couldn't wait to get this all off his chest and that he couldn't believe this
happened. After Exavir was in the rear of our squad and the door was shut, his mother walked close to the squad and yelled out
that she loved him, and he did nothing wrong.

We transported Exavir to the St. Paul Police Headquarters (367 Grove St) without incident. Exavir was escorted to the second floor
and was placed in a secure interview room. | removed the handcuffs off of Exavir and closed the door to the room. | monitored
Exavir through video surveillance.

At approximately 2121 hours, | placed handcuffs on Exavir, | checked the tightness and double locked. We transported Exavir from
the second floor of St. Paul Police Headquarters to the Ramsey County Law Enforcement Center without incident.

Exavir was booked for assault- great bodily harm, first degree, felony.

Narrative 14 Created by: BESAW, KEVIN (50151) 01/18/2023, 19:17

about:blank

Synopsis :
Supplemental report.
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023, at approximately 1612 hours, I, OFF. K. BESAW (366) heard radio traffic of a shooting that occurred in the area of
270 Lexington Parkway N. Eventually suspect information was aired of a possible suspect of EXAVIR DWAYNE BINFORD (DOB:
04/11/1996, 1663 Stillwater Ave.,) which is an east district address. Using MyBCA | noticed that BINFORD had several vehicles
currently registered to him. | waited in the area of White Bear Ave. N., and Stillwater Ave., to see if any of his vehicles turned onto
Stillwater Ave.

Eventually squads took BINFORD into custody. While on scene | was asked to standby with a vehicle, MN LIC KAF 634, a gray
2007 Chevrolet Equinox. | was later asked to photograph the exterior of the vehicle and not the interior as it would be towed and
held. | photographed the exterior of the vehicle and uploaded the photographs to MediaVault.

| also assisted by having the vehicle towed to the impound lot and informed the tow truck driver that | would be following the vehicle
to the garage at the impound lot and to not touch the interior of the vehicle as it was going to be processed. | observed the vehicle
being towed and confirmed that no person (s) entered or touched the interior of the vehicle.

List of Photos for CN 23009924
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. POLICE INCIDENT REPORT

Service with Purpose
e SAINT PAUL POLICE DEPARTMENT

| went into the Rec Center and spoke with a male who identified himself by his MN DL as BAHMAN SAMADANI (DOB: /65,
, C#: )- SAMADANI said he was sitting inside his vehicle (MN
when he heard one gun shot. SAMADANI said he looked around and saw the shooter
running past his vehicle. SAMADANI said the shooter was a black male wearing a black hoodie. SAMADANI said the shooter was
also running with a handgun in his hand. SAMADANI said the handgun had a silver barrel. SAMADANI said he ducked down but
watched the shooter run towards Marshall Ave from the Rec Center. SAMADANI said when the shooter got onto Marshall Ave, the
shooter ran eastbound on Marshall Ave into an unknown area.

See other reports for additional information.

Narrative 17 Created by: SAND, TRYGVE (596000) 01/18/2023, 19:22

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 1/18/23, ASPIRE/Gang Unit squad 822 (Officers Trygve Sand & Brian Wanschura) responded to the area of Kennard St.
and Stillwater Ave. after Ramsey County Deputies aired over the radio they were out with the suspect of shooting that took place at
270 Lexington Ave. (Jimmy Lee Rec Center). Ofc. Wanschura and | were wearing SPPD VPM (Visible Police Markings), and were
driving in an ASPIRE/Gang Unit unmarked vehicle. Ofc. Wanschura was the driver.

Upon arrival, we met Ramsey County Sheriff's Office Sergeant Mark Sucky (#1719) who had detained the suspect. The
suspect was identified as a Exavir Dwayne BINFORD, 4-11-96 of 1663 Stillwater Ave. by Deputy Suchy. Squad 384 (officers
Higgins & Xiong) took custody of BINFORD and secured him in the back of their squad. See squad 384's supplemental report. |,
ofc. Sand took custody of the handgun (unknown make or model) that was recovered from BINFORD, from Deputy Suchy. | took
the magazine out and unchambered a live round from the handgun. | placed the single bullet recovered from the chamber into an
evidence envelope and placed the magazine in a separate envelope. | secured the handgun in an SPPD evidence gun box and
later turned the handgun (boxed), one live round and magazine over to Gang Unit officer Betsinger. See his supplemental report.

Officer Wanschura then assisted with holding 1663 Stillwater Ave. until we were relieved by assisting Gang Unit officers.

Narrative 18 Created by: NOTTHAKUN, MON (499409) 01/18/2023, 19:25

Synopsis :

Supplement Report.

Narrative :

No ICC Video available for Squad #1583. BWC available for Officer M. Notthakun.

On 01/18/2023 at 1612 hours, Squad #531 (M. Notthakun) was dispatched to 640 Jackson St (Regions Hospital) to assist officers
with a juvenile male victim who was shot by a firearm at 270 Lexington Parkway N (Jimmy Lee Recreation Center).

| went to the hospital and spoke with the parents of the victim. The parents were both identified by MN DL as, mother:
: :© I =n f=trer: [
;(c

said she came to the hospital because she saw on Facebook there was a shooting at 270 Lexington Parkway N and
a person was shot. She attempted to contact her son who was verbally identified as, /2006;
), but he did not answer his phone. An unknown family member contacte and state

was the person who was shot. arrived at the hospital to get further information.
q stated he was contacted by a family member, who statedm was shot and was at Regions Hospital, thus he
went to the hospital to get further information. showed Squa T (M. Tschida/ A. Larkin) a photo ofh
on her phone. Squad #138T stated it appeared the pnoto on || lj phone appeared to be who was being

treated by the medical staff.

I < I svoke Vvith the medical staff on the status of ||| -

Sgt B. Hall relieved me of my duties at the hospital.
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See original report.

No further information.

Narrative 19 Created by: JAWORSKI, ERIC (316001) 01/18/2023, 19:30

Synopsis :

Supplemental.

Narrative :

On 01/18/2022 at 1630 hours, |, Officer E. JAWORSKI (Sqd 228) assisted Officers on a report of an Assault at 270 Lexington
Pkwy. Officers requested a police presence at Regions hospital for when family members of the injured party showed up. |
responded to the hospital where | assisted with securing the main entrance and calming family members as needed. No incidents
occurred while | was on scene and | later cleared from the Hospital when Sgt. B. HALL said the situation was under control and
assistance was no longer needed.

Nothing further to report.

Narrative 20 Created by: GOSS, LOGAN (235060) 01/18/2023, 19:35

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 at 1615 Hour, | Officer Goss and Officer A. Lemon (Squad 178T) working patrol for St. Paul Police Department
responded to an assault at 270 Lexington Pkwy N(Jimmy Lee Rec Center). Initial information from Ramsey county dispatch was
that a male had been shot at the Rec center and the suspect had left on foot.

| responded to the call and observed several people in the parking lot. In the middle row of the parking lot near a minivan |
observed a juvenile African male wearing a red jacket laying on his back. The male had an head injury that was suspected to have
been caused by a gun shot wound. | observed other St. Paul officers providing medical attention to the victim, in which | began
speaking to witnesses.

| spoke with a juvenile witness who was identified asm , ,”).
- stated she observed an argument break out between the suspect and victim. state at she observe em
arguing in the parking lot and the suspect began walking east through the parking lot. said that the victim followed the
suspect across the parking lot, which she said he was antagonizing him. said she observed the suspect then shoot the

victim. | asked to describe the firearm, which she stated it was a small black pistol. |Jjj stated the suspect ran South
through the parking lot towards Marshall, then she was unsure where he went.

| asked if she knew the suspect, which she stated his name is Exavir and he works at the Rec center. | asked to
describe the suspect, which she stated he was black male, tall, approximately 6-5, medium build wearing a ski mask, and wearing
all black.

| later learned the suspect was identified as EXAVIR DWAYNE BINFORD JR(04/11/1996) and the victim was -

| assisted with securing the scene. | took photographs of the the original scene, which | placed into the media vault.
Officer A. Lemon and | both signed the crime scene log.

| collected BINFORD JR's phone from staff at the Rec center. | spoke with ERIC JOHN THOMPSON 1963, PHm
) who turned over BINFORD JR's phone. THOMPSON lead me an office which was located behind the main desk.
MPSON provided me with a iPhone, which THOMPSON believes is BINFORD JR's work phone. | collected the phone using
latex gloves putting it in a manila envelope. THOMPSON advised that the phone numbers he has for BINFORD JR's phone is 651-
529-6818 and 763-354-0823. | was unable to place the phone into airplane mode. The phone was put into a faraday bag, and
placed in the evidence locker room.

about:blank
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Upon arrival | assembled a cover team with on duty swat personal and checked Obi's equipment. The suspect was named Xavier
and was supposed to be wearing black clothing and a jimmy lee Rec shirt. | deployed Obi on a 20 foot leash and made several
announcements and we began tracking out of the parking lot. There were people all over the streets and only had information that
he fled to the east.

As we started the track we were updated that the suspect was possibly last seen south bound on Oxford from Marshall. We
attempted to establish a track to the south and eventually began working yard to yard. During the search we were updated the
suspect was located in East district and he had the firearm.

| returned to the rec center and signed the crime scene log.

Narrative 24 Created by: BERG, JORDAN (49695) 01/18/2023, 20:37

Synopsis :
Supplemental Report
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 at 1612 hours, |, Squad 286 (BERG) was dispatched to 270 Lexington Parkway North for a Assault call. The caller
stated a male shot another person and ran away on foot.

Upon arrival, | heard officers on scene asking for arriving officers to assist in interviewing witnesses.

| walked to the front entrance of 270 Lexinaton Parkway North and began speaking to a female who identified herself as*
(DOB Ph m). stated she saw the whole thing. said she was sitting
on the retaining wall near the front door with her friends. said she saw the suspect who Is one of the school workers
walk out of the front door to 270 Lexington Parkway North and approach two younger males on the South East side of the building.
said the two younger males were named said she heard the suspect call
an a "Bitch" and say "Not on my corner." said she saw the suspect pull his coat to the side and show wha
looked like a qun to andH sald after she and her friends saw that, they decided to run inside the front
door.F said she saw the suspect back to the front door and try to enter the building._ said they kept the doors
shut so the suspect could not make it inside. m said she saw and walk across the parking lot and begin
walking down the sidewalk on the East side of the building. sald she saw the suspect turn around and run back towards
and H on the sidewalk.F stated the suspect qot close to and _Ithen and
ran through the parking lot as the suspect chased them. said she saw the suspect punc In the
ead, pull out a gun, and shoot in the head. said she then saw the suspect run toward Oxfor reet North.
said they did not see him after.

” said the suspect works at 270 Lexington Parkway North as a Gym worker / Hall monitor. said she did not
now the name of the suspect but she has seen him working at 270 Lexington Parkway North. said he is approximately
mid to late 20'5.H said the suspect has always acted a little crazy. said today she saw the suspect wearing a
black ski mask, black pants, black jacket, and black hoodie.

| was instructed to escort* to the Saint Paul Headquarter to have the Homicide unit interview her. | brought ||l to
the second floor. After she was done being interviewed, | escorted her out of the building.

Narrative 25 Created by: GIANG, BRYAN (225899) 01/18/2023, 20:39

Synopsis :
Supplemental Report
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 at approximately 16:12 hours, We, Officers B. Giang and C. Jenkins (Squad 188), responded to an assault incident
at 270 Lexington Parkway N.

We arrived on scene and | spoke to an employee of the Jimmy Lee Rec Center, Furo Ejero (DOB: IZOOO,H,
CIP:—). Ejero stated that she was in the front of the Rec Center and witnessed a physical altercation between another
employee Xavier and some younger subjects Ejero stated that she heard 1 gunshot during the altercation (She did not physically
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black and a black facemask and fled the scene. F said the suspect worked at the Jimmy Lee Recreational Center, but he did
not know his name. then left the scene with another juvenile male stating he did not wish to speak to Officers anymore.
did not provide his name or any kind of contact information. Other withesses on scene knew- and provided me with
IS name and date of birth. is a 10th grade student at Central Highschool.

| also spoke with DAVID ANTONIO ALBORNOZ (DOB: /1971, , C/sz) who stated he did not witness
the shooting, but did run outside to attempt to provide aid to the victim. RNOZ stated he found the victim laying on his side
with a gunshot wound to his head. ALBORNOZ applied pressure to the wound and checked the victim's pulse until medics arrived
on scene to take over.

It should be noted security camera footage shows a juvenile male appearing to be outside in the parking lot at the time of
the shooting. Also as [Jij information was obtained through a third party it'is possible the spelling of his name may be
different.

No further information at this time.

Narrative 28 Created by: JOHNSON, JACOB (323455) 01/18/2023, 21:12

Synopsis :
Supplemental Report
Narrative :

On 2023-01-18 at approximately 1638 hours, | Officer J. Johnson and Officer M. Kempe SQD#534T arrived at Regions Hospital,
640 Jackson St for crowd control for a male that was recently shot at the Jimmy Lee Rec Center (270 Lexington Parkway N).

Once inside the emergency waiting area, we remained in the area to wait for the family and friends of the victim. The family and
friends started to arrive at approximately 1650 hours, and | spoke to a female later identified as
(DOB-).- stated that she was at the rec center with the victim when he was shot.

— stated there was a fight outside of the rec center when a male she identified as, "EXAVIR" exited the front door of the rec
center and began to walk towards the group. EXAVIR was described as a 6'01" medium set black male, wearing a "Shawstey"
mask that covered his face except his eyes, black sweatshirt, black sweatpants. While EXAVIR was walking towards the group, he

stated to“ and an unidentified female friend, "Shut the fuck up bitches!" EXAVIR then zipped down his sweatshirt, reached
in with his left hand towards the right side of the sweatshirt and pulled a handgun out. stated she never saw the firearm
pointed but heard EXAVIR state to the victim, "Come check it out, come around the corner. stated she started running

towards the front entrance to the rec center when she saw the handgun begin to be pulled out.

told the victim to not listen to EXAVIR and to run inside with her as she was reaching the front entrance of the rec center.

en was in the vestibule of the rec center, she heard one gun shot, looked out a window and saw the victim laying down

on the groun F saw EXAVIR running around the parking and then approach the front door.F stated she wanted to
run out to check to see if the victim was ok, but another rec center employee stopped her and told her to run inside to the gaming

area. stated she never saw the firearm fully to describe it, didn't see when EXAVIR shot the victim and was unable to see
where ran off to.

- later stated that she and her friends have had bad interactions with EXAVIR and that he was a problem employee at the
rec center. ] stated that she had no further information.

Nothing further.

Narrative 29 Created by: SCHWAB, JEFFREY (621400) 01/18/2023, 21:51

about:blank

Synopsis :

Narrative :

WITNESS INTERVIEW: _

On 01/18/2023 at 1840 hours |, Sergeant Schwab, interviewed witness:
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e

Also present in the interview was her mother who was identified as:

I - I

The interview took place in the Museum Interview Room at SPPD HQ. The interview was video recorded and uploaded to AXON.
The following is only a summary of the conversation:

She stated everyone at Jimmy Lee goes to Central High School. After school a big group went from school to Jimmy Lee.
She stated there was a big girl fight.

The manager of Jimmy Lee Rec came out of the Rec Center. She stated his name is Xavier.

He came out to tell the kids to leave. She stated the police arrived and were only there for a couple of minutes and then left.
Everything had calmed down, so the police left. Because of the fight no one was allowed to go into the building so many of the
kids were in the parking lot talking.

Five minutes later Javon got into a car and left. Five minutes later she realized Javon had returned and had only gone to the
store. She said everything was still good.

She stated a girl named [Jj and Xavier were arguing because ] was trying to get her brother inside of the building.
Xavier came outside. Xavier told [Jj “Shut up bitch”. He said this two times to her.

She stated and his friend (Jiij were over by the side of the building. |JJJj said something to Xavier and that's
when everything started.

Xavier pulled down his coat and showed |JJJJJj and ]| his oun. While showing the gun to [Jjj he told him to come
around the corner.

All the girls outside started banging on the door to alert other staff to come let them in because Xavier had a gun. They were
letin. The other staff were questioning the girls about what was going on.

She was looking out the window and could see- and Xavier outside arguing and moving into the parking lot.
She dropped her bag and ran from inside out into the lot.
She said Xavier and ] and [JJJli] were a!l fighting. She said, “'m not gonna lie - | was fighting too”.

She said as soon as they were done fighting “Xavier backed up and pulled out his gun and shot him right in the head”. He
said ] dropped right to the ground. He said Xavier ran. She didn’t know where he ran, but he ran.

She confirmed she was in the lot right by all three (Xavier, and” when Xavier pulled the gun. She motioned
like he pulled the lapel on the left side of his jacket down with his left hand and pulled the gun out with his right hand. She
motioned the gun would have been high, not from the waist, like it was in a pocket or shoulder holster. She stated Xavier was
wearing black pants, black hooded sweatshirt, and a black jacket.

| asked how far Xavier was from when he pulled the gun out and shot him. She initially estimated 5-10 feet away. |
stood up and stepped away from her. e told me to back up a little bit more. | was about 15 feet away from her when she said
that was the distance Xavier was from

She confirmed she was standing about 5 feet away from Javon when he was shot. She thoughtF had run behind a
car. She said she thought the Jimmy Lee worker (white male) was also out there when the shot was fired.

She confirmed Xavier fired one shot.

She said he only had the gun out for 2-3 seconds and didn’t say anything before he shot. She said he pointed it at him and
shot at him.
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| signed into the crime scene log and then entered the Jimmy Lee Recreational Center. | spoke with Randy Graff (DOB
1983, ) via phone who stated he would respond to the Rec Center to assist in reviewing security video.

When GRAFF arrived on scene, | began review security video with him. The video time appears to be 13 minutes slow. GRAFF
also stated the video is motion sensor activated. The exterior camera which covers the parking lot where the incident occurred
stops recording at 1554:57 hours (Video time) and starts recording at 1600:53 hours. It appears the shooting had already
occurred. The video was not clear enough to see who was near the victim after the shooting.

In the video the suspectm can be seen at 1513:26 hours, wearing a black hoodie, black facemask, blue St. Paul Park and
Rec shirt, black jeans, and black shoes. _ walks out to the vestibule and then appears to exits the building. H is
then seen outside the main entrance talking to numerous other people. At 1518:59 hours,H walks south out of view of the
cameras. At 1523 hours,— returns to the area outside the front entrance and stands with other staff members looking to
the south. remains outside until 1547:54 hours. walks in, enters the office behind the front desk. At 1549:24
hours exits the office wearing a blacks winterjackm then exits the main entrance and walks to the south out of
view of the cameras. The people standing outside the main entrance appear to the watching to the south and the staff inside then
react and run to the front door. At 1554:38 hours, a male wearing similar clothes and similar jacket to returns to the area

outside the main entrance. This male then walks towards the parking lot at 1556:45 hours. A male in a red jacket and light colored
pants appears to engage him in conversation. The males then walk out towards the parking lot.

At 1558:02 hours a staff member and a few other people can be seen running towards the parking lot where the victim was later
found. The staff member returns and appears to be directing other children back into the building. At 1600:53 hours the exterior
parking lot camera shows people standing around the area the victim was located.

At 1602:33 hours the police arrive on scene.

| later recovered the video from GRAFF on a USB drive, which was turned into the property room.

| informed Sgt. Peng Lee of what the video captures.

about:blank

Narrative 33 Created by: DEAN, FRANCINE (148757) 01/18/2023, 22:36

Synopsis :
Supplemental Report
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 at 1716 hours, Squad #377 (DEAN) responded to 1663 Stillwater Ave to assist squads that were holding the
residence pending a search warrant. Squads on scene asked for two additional marked squads to assist and | responded.

When | arrived, Gang Unit squads asked me to take the homeowner and her juvenile daughter to headquarters to be voluntarily
interviewed by the Homicide Unit. | transported REGINA EVETTE HICKS (DOB/197

, CIP: _) and her” “ H) to headqua!ers. | !roug!l !|!!! an! . up lo
where other withesses were being held on the second floor and informed the Homicide Unit of my arrival. Due to the large number

of withesses Sgt. A. LARSON instructed me to bring HICKS down to the central community room and take her statement.

was not a witness to

| brought HICKS andm to the central community room and took a witness statement from HICKS.
s that took place after.- was present during my interview but | did not ask her any questions.

this crime or the even

HICKS told me that her son is Exavir Binford (04/11/1996). HICKS said that Exavir lives in a basement bedroom at her house and
works at the Jimmy Lee Rec Center. | asked HICKS what Exavir's job was and she said "He runs the whole building." HICKS said
that Exavir gets to work via bus. HICKS said that today at approximately 1630 hours, she got a call from Exavir. HICKS said that
Exavir told her, "l did something bad. | think | killed someone." HICKS said that Exavir told her that he was about to get on the light
rail train. HICKS said that she at least wanted to see Exavir before he was arrested and agreed to pick Exavir up. HICKS said that
she drove her Chevrolet Equinox (MN/KAF634) to the area 5th St E / Minnesota St to pick Exavir up from the light rail station.
HICKS clarified that she was alone when in the car when she went to pick up Exavir. HICKS said that in the car, Exavir told her
what happened.

HICKS said that Exavir told her that the same kids that he always has problems with at the rec center walked over from Central
High School to Jimmy Lee Rec. HICKS said that Exavir told her that one of the kids "jumped on him." HICKS said that she thought
that the kid "got the better" of Exavir because Exavir was bleeding from the lip when she picked him up. HICKS said that Exavir
told her that he got up and walked away from the boy to "separate himself from the situation." HICKS said that Exavir told her that
he then fired one shot at the boy. HICKS said that Exavir made statements to her about how he "felt bad" about the altercation.
HICKS said that Exavir told her "I knew | shouldn't have done it," "I'm disappointed in myself" and "Mom, I'm sorry | disappointed
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you." HICKS said that she knew that the police would be waiting for Exavir at their house, but she wanted to see him before he was
taken. HICKS said that she drove Exavir directly home. HICKS said at her house, police surrounded her vehicle and took Exavir
into custody as he was getting out of the car. HICKS said that she does not believe that Exavir left anything inside of her vehicle. |
informed HICKS that her vehicle had been towed and was being held for investigators to process for potential evidence. HICKS
signed a Waiver and Consent to Search form to allow investigators to search her vehicle.

| asked HICKS what Exavir was wearing when she picked him up downtown. HICKS said that Exavir had on a dark grey or black
hooded jacket, blue jeans, Air Force One shoes and a red backpack. | asked HICKS how many firearms Exavir owns and HICKS
said "just the one he used." HICKS said that she did not see a gun on Exavir when he was in her car.

At the conclusion of my interview with HICKS, | informed her that squads were still holding her house for a potential search warrant
and the Homicide was still determining if they needed to search the house. | told HICKS that | could take her back to the address
but she would not be able to enter the house until the scene had been released. | told HICKS that | could also take her anywhere
else she wanted to go to wait for her house to be released. HICKS told me that she just wanted to go home. HICKS said that she
preferred to wait at headquarters instead of sitting in my squad car. As soon as | received notification that the address had been
released, | drove HICKS and Ross back to the address. | provided HICKS with my business card with the case number and a
business card from the homicide investigator who would be in contact with her about her vehicle at the impound lot.

Nothing further at this time.

Narrative 34 Created by: CHUNG, PHUONG (115900) 01/18/2023, 22:40

Synopsis :
Narrative :

ltems:
14 Forensic Forensic - Evidence (91) digital images of scene

Narrative 35 Created by: VIXAYVONG, SAYARETH (710800) 01/18/2023, 22:44

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 1, Sergeant Vixayvong assigned to the St. Paul Police Department Gang Unit responded Jimmy Lee Recreation
Center, 270 Lexington Pkwy for a report of a male victim shot in the parking lot. The victim was transported to Regions Hospital
prior to my arrival. Arrived on scene | assisted inside the Jimmy Lee Rec. center with assigning Officers Officers to stay with
witnesses to the incident until further notice. | also assisted with separating witnesses from non witnesses. Shortly after West
District Sergeants Diaz and Shead took over the scene inside the Rec. Center | cleared the scene. | signed in and out of the crime
scene. Nothing further at this time.

Narrative 36 Created by: DAGENAIS, CHAD (141500) 01/18/2023, 22:50

Synopsis :
Narrative :

ltems:

F1  Guns/ammunition Ammunition - Casings Cartridge case with headstamp SIG 9mm LUGER from ground
F1.1  Other property DNA - Gun (FSU) - Evidence One DNA swab from Item F1, surface of cartridge case
F2 Forensic Forensic - Evidence Wallet and keys from ground with identification of Exavir Binford

F3 Forensic DNAKIit- Evidence Two apparent blood swabs from ground

F4 Forensic Forensic - Evidence Blue jacket from ground with stocking cap in pocket

F5 Forensic Forensic - Evidence Earbud speaker from ground
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Narrative 37 Created by: YAGER, AVERY (750417) 01/18/2023, 23:11

Synopsis :
Supp report.
Narrative :

On 1/18/22, at approx. 1612 hrs, |, Ofc. Yager (SQD 167) was dispatched to 270 Lexington Av. N (Jimmy Lee Rec), on a report of a
person shot.

CAD comments indicated that a male had been shot in the head, with multiple callers.
Upon arrival, | drove into the parking lot of the address listed above. As | entered, | could several people gathered around a person

on the ground. As | approached the group, | observed a black male laying on his back on the ground with a large amount of blood
coming from his head area. | assisted other officers on scene with crowd control until other responding SQDs arrived.

later identified as“ (DOB ), who wished to remain
explained that ad previously spoke to another officer and gave a statement (Transit PD).

Informe a works at the Rec center and was the Rec. center's director. | asked if. had access to
cameras as | wanted to review them. stated that. did have access.

Once, more assistance arrived, | spoke with a
anonymous.

| asked— to show me where | can review them.. brought me to! office inside and pulled up cameras. | was able to
view a camera listed "Front entrance", where you could see the suspect walking and pacing back and forth in front of the main
doors. It appeared the suspect was having a dispute with someone off camera. At some point, you can see the victims red jacket

sleeve appear in the lower right corner of the video. It appeared that the victim was engaging in a conversation with the suspect.

After a few moments of the dispute, you can see the suspect walk away from the front doors, and then later stopping at the
sidewalk to the front doors and parking lot. The victim is then seen walking into camera view and began walking towards the
suspect. At that time, it seems that the suspect and victim were talking face to face where they eventually walked further into the
parking lot and out of that camera view.

| then clicked on a camera listed "Parking lot".

It should be noted, both video footages were not very clear and seemed blurry or hazy. As | clicked on the Parking Lot camera, |
was able to see vehicles but no people in the parking lot. As the time stamp become close to the time stamp of the camera listed
Front Entrance, the "Parking Lot" camera stopped recording. The camera in fact, stopped showing video and was a black screen. |
tried refreshing the camera but noted that there was actually a delay in video footage.

| was not able to view any footage of the suspect and victim walking into the parking lot. The video however, does come back on,

where you can see people gathered around where the victim was located in the parking lot. The video again stops recording and
appears to skip ahead and then shows police and medics on scene.

| asked [ il knew the reason for the skip/delay, [J] stated ] was not sure.

While attempting to review video footage, F became emotional and stated several times that JJ] tried to break the fight
up. | stated. "why would he do that” Implying the suspect shooting the victim.

Sgt. Shead (SQD 108) was notified.
| signed in and out of the crime scene log.
| then replaced SQD 150 who was stationed at the parking lot's entrance/exit, and continued to secure the lot.

| cleared without further.

about:blank

Narrative 38 Created by: KOSLOSKE, MEGAN (114701) 01/18/2023, 23:16

Synopsis :

Narrative :
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On 01/18/2023 at 1612 hours, | (Officer M. Kosloske- SQD 165) was dispatched to the Jimmy Lee Rec Center at 270 Lexington
Pkwy N for reports of a male shot in the parking lot.

| arrived on scene along with numerous other squads. Officers who were already on scene were providing aid to the victim who
was laying in the middle of the parking lot of the Rec Center. Squads on scene were requesting crime scene be put up. | assisted
with putting crime scene tape up around the entire parking lot of the rec center and advising individuals to remain inside the rec
center while the scene was being made secure.

While on scene, Sergeant Diaz (107) handed me the crime scene log and requested | be in charge of it. | remained in control of the
crime scene long for the entirety of the incident.

| remained on scene for scene security while the Forensic Services Unit (FSU) responded and investigated the scene along with
the Homicide Unit.

After the scene was released by FSU, | requested a scene wash down by St. Paul Fire who responded. After St. Paul Fire cleared
the scene, | took down the crime scene tape along with Officer A. Yager.

The crime scene log was uploaded to media vault.

End of supplement.

Narrative 39 Created by: MCMANUS, SEAN (432100) 01/19/2023, 01:11

Synopsis :
Supplement Report
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023 at 1612 hours, We, Squad 182(S.McManus/D.Benner) responded to 270 Lexington Parkway N (JIMMY LEE
RECREATION CENTER) for a male who had been shot in the head. When we arrived on scene | observed a male laying on the
ground with a large pool of blood near his head. Police and staff were applying pressure until medics could arrive on scene.

| attempted to speak with a witness who stated he saw the victim laying on the ground but did not see the shooting. The male
stated the suspect ran towards Marshall Avenue and unknown from there but refused to give his name. | along with multiple other
officers gathered all possible withess and escorted them inside the rec center to get their statement. | signed into the crime scene
log and began to hang crime scene tape.

After hanging up crime scene tape | searched the parking lot for the suspect vehicle with negative results. While searching the
parking lot | located a single spent casing a few feet east of where the victim was laying on the ground. | placed a business card
near the casing and stood by until someone relieved me and took custody of the casing.

See other reports for more.

Narrative 40 Created by: BENNER, DONOVAN (43952) 01/19/2023, 01:16

Synopsis :
Supplemental Report
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023, at approximately 1612hrs, We, Squad 182 (Benner/McManus) were sent to 270 Lexington Parkway N for an
assault call.

Call comments stated someone was shot in the head in the Jimmy Lee Rec parking lot. | assisted with scene security by putting up
crime scene tape. | signed into the crime scene log. | stayed on scene until we were advised by Squad 108 (Sgt.Shead) to take
other calls. We left the scene at approximately 1822hrs.

See the original report for complete details of the incident.

about:blank
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Synopsis :
Narrative :

WITNESS INTERVIEW: Tanesia Edwards

On 01/18/2023 at 1940 hours |, Sergeant Schwab, interviewed witness:

I - - I

Also present in the interview was her Aunt who was identified as

I S - c-' I

The interview took place in the Museum Interview Room at SPPD HQ. The interview was video recorded and uploaded to Axon.
The following is only a summary of the conversation:

She confirmed there was a fight at Jimmy Lee. She said Xavier came outside. She knows he is an employee for the rec
center.

Xavier told the group they needed to leave. The police arrived for a short period of time and left. She and a group of kids
were just waiting outside for their ride. She said Xavier was blocking the door telling the kids they couldn’t go inside.

While they were sitting near the front door | Jij and JJJl] were over by the front windows on the “side of the building”.

She spoke about coming to try and let her cousin inside and said she had permission from another employee. Xavier
was upset with the other employees for granting her permission. He was cursing at the kids and when he talked about this.
She thought it was employee Farrah that gave permission. F and Xavier were going back and forth. went inside
and Xavier went inside after he. They came back out. - was talking to them and Xavier now had his coat and ski mask on.

Xavier called ] a bitch. The group confronted him about calling [Jjjfj names.
Xavier and [JJj began to exchanged words. She couldn’t make out what was being said.

Xavier unzipped his jacked and showed his gun. She couldn’t really see it but the way he motioned into his jacket made it
clear he had a gun.

Xavier was teIIing- and - to “come around the corner, come around the corner”.

She stated |||}l () s I ir'friend and she was telling them “No!”.

She and the others were banging on the window to try and alert other staff members to come out there. Employee Farrah
came to the door and was asking what happened. They told her Xavier had a gun. Farrah brought the kids inside.

She talked about being able to see the three of them (Xavier, ||| Il ovt in the lot. She could see they were
arguing, but obviously couldn’t hear what was being said.

. The three moved over by the cars in the lot. She said the three began to fight. She didn’t know who threw the first punch.
He said and F were punching him and Xavier fell. She said Xavier was fighting back. She said it was a physical
fight — all three were throwing punches. Xavier fell at one point and got back up.

Once the physical fight started they all went outside including employees Farrah and a - employee and an employee
named India. She said India was on the phone.

She heard a gunshot and stood there in shock. She could see ] was on the ground.

She said Xavier ran towards the trees. Xavier was then pacing back and forth — like he was debating whether to run off or
not.
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She confirmed - and India were right by- when he was shot.

She confirmed she did not actually see the shooting. She confirmed it was one shot.
| spoke with her about reaching out for help to sort some of the emotions of what she saw.

| provided my business card. This was the final interview | conducted, and all parties were escorted to the front of HQ with Ms.
Brooks to leave.

Narrative 47 Created by: BERTHOLF, RICHARD (50152) 01/19/2023, 10:33

Synopsis :
VMU collection report; SPPS
Narrative :

|, Data Release Specialist BERTHOLF, am currently assigned to the Video Management Unit, a division of the Technology Unit. |
am also a LEVA Certified Forensic Video Technician.

Part of my duties include being asked by investigators to assist in locating and exporting DVR surveillance video, SPPD CCTV
footage, SPPD squad In Car Camera (ICC) footage, and SPPD Officer Body Worn Camera (BWC) footage.

Regarding this case, | received a Forensic Video Collection request from Sgt. P. LEE/M. ONNEN for DVR footage from 275 N.
Lexington Pkwy, CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL.

On 2023/01/18, | went to the St. Paul Public Schools' Office of Security and Emergency Management located at 360 S. Colborne
st. and spoke to Roosevelt FRY ([ -

Mr. Fry exported footage from one (1) exterior camera with a partial view of the area of the Oxford Community Center. The DVR
footage is from 15:39 to 16:35 for 2022/01/18 onto a USB Flash Drive | provided. The time noted is based on the DVR timestamp.

The footage was exported using the exacqVision system which generates files in .exe format to include the exacqVision Media
Player, version 20.09.10.0.

At SPPD HQ, | used the computer program MD5summer to generate a HASH report for all the data collected.

| burned the DVR data to a CD and turned it in to Property. | also made a copy for the Investigator.

Narrative 48 Created by: ROONEY, COLLEEN (434970) 01/19/2023, 10:50

Synopsis :
Narrative :
On 01/18/2023 at approximately 1612 hours, |, Sergeant Rooney (Squad 821), assisted Western District on a report of an Assault.

While en route to the scene, | was advised that there was a victim shot in the head, and the suspect was at large. There were
multiple victims on scene that needed to be interviewed.

| arrived on scene, and walked into the Jimmy Lee Rec Center, and was advised that people on scene who did not witness the
event were to head to the north area of the rec center.

| withessed multiple potential witnesses standing with officers, and assisted in assigning Officers to each individual who did witness
the event, and to transport them down to St. Paul Police Headquarters.

While on scene, Ramsey County Deputies advised Officers that they had the suspect, EXAVIR BINFORD, 04/11/1996, in custody
at his registered address, 1663 Stillwater Ave.
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Myself, and other ASPIRE/Gang Unit Officers went to 1663 Stillwater to assist Officers on scene holding the house for Homicide
Unit for a potential search warrant.

| helped in coordinating squads to standby until we heard from the Homicide Unit.
Homicide Unit later informed me that they no longer needed the house to be held, and Officers cleared the residence.

It should be noted that | did not sign the Crime Scene Log while on scene at 270 Lexington Parkway, Jinmy Lee Rec Center.

Narrative 49 Created by: LARSON, AMBER (384515) 01/19/2023, 10:55

Synopsis :

Narrative :

wirness wrervic- I SR

On 01/18/2023 at 1809 hours, I, Sergeant Amber Larson interviewed witness, ||| | | |} JJEEI =t the st Paul Police
Department (367 Grove St) on the 2nd Floor in the Homicide Conference Room.

The interview was audio and video recorded and later uploaded into Axon (Evidence).

**It should be noted during the interview, * couldn’t recall the female rec center employee’s name and reference her as
“Flower” in the interview. In a later interview with another Rec Employee, | was advised the correct name was “Furo Ejero”.

Here is a summary of the interview:

« She was at Jimmy Lee Recreation Center (270 Lexington Pkwy N), and she stated there was a physical altercation between
a group of teenage girls (approximately 5) outside the recreation center.

* The rec staff was trying to diffuse the situation and telling people to “move around” because they don’t want stuff like that up
there.

« She specifically named an employee (Exavier) and stated he was telling people to leave and to not come back. The fight was
over and and her friends walked towards the entrance of the building to sit on the benches because they were
waiting for their ride so they could leave. Exavier was okay with them staying outside, however advised them that they could
not come into the building because staff locked the doors.

* She stated people kept approaching the doors because others were trying to enter the rec center, however Exavier was
telling people they couldn’'t come in the building. She stated there was one girl that was inside the building before it was
locked, who wanted her brother to come inside. Exavier advised him that he couldn’t come into the building. Some how the
brother was able to get into the building without Exavier knowing.

+ Exavier found out and she stated, “he wasn’'t mad, but he was mad”. She said the girl told Exavier to let her brother in and he
can come in. Exavier told the girl, “No, get the fuck back bitch, he not coming in. Y'all can move around and y’all don’t need
to be here”. The girl said, “Fuck, | can move around, and | can call my peoples”. Exavier said, “Good, call your peoples”.

« She stated that the girl and her brother were leaving the building and walking out. As the girl was walking out, she told
Exavier, that the other female employee (Furo Ejero) was the one who said they could be in there. This irritated Exavier and
he told the girl, “Fuck Furo, | don’'t know why that bitch try to go over my authority”. - said, “l guess he is the boss,
because he said he is the boss”.

« Exavier went back inside building of Jimmy Lee for approximately five minutes, and she stated, “| guess he clocked out, and |
guess he went to get his gun. | don’t know if he (Exavier) had it on him already or not. He walked out with a ski mask; he had
to walk past the girl and was getting disrespectful with her, so that is why she was arguing with him because he was saying
rude things to her”. The girl told Exavier, “I can call my brother”. Exavier then showed his gun.
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* She was specific and stated he walked out the building with both his hands in his front pocket of his jacket originally. He
turned around and said, “Y'all some bitches, talking to all the people that were right there, the girl that was defending her
brother said, what the fuck he say?” She stated at this point, Xavier reached into the chest area of the interior of the left side
of his jacket and pulled out the gun and pointed it at them.

. H stated her and her friends got scared so they ran to the front doors of Jimmy Lee. She estimated there may have
een / girls and 2 boys and then stated there was less than 20 people. She began banging on the doors because they were
locked, and they were afraid. Furo came to the door and asked them what happened, they were yelling telling her that Xavier
had a gun multiple time. Furo said, “No he doesn’t, stop playing like that. Are you guys serious”? Furo let them in the
building and told them she was going to call 911 before the shooting.

« The two boys _ and were still outside with Exavier. They were all walking SB towards Marshall, however
still on Jimmy Lee property. She stated Exavier was “getting rough with them, not touching them, but talking out his neck to
the boys. We didn’'t know what he was saying because we were all screaming trying to get into the gym”.

. F stated that Furo was scared and didn’t know what to do. Furo was trying to calm everybody down and made sure
e doors were locked and told the juveniles that were inside to stay inside the building.

e She stated the Fl in the building (later identified as_-employee) came out asking what happened. Furo
told Ari that the kids were telling her that Exavier had a gun.

« While this was going on, Exavier,*and- were still outside in front of Jimmy Lee. was sitting down,
m was standing by the door, and Exavier was near the door. Exavier was talking to them “reckless” and pacing back
and forth with his hands in his pockets. Exavier was telling them to open the door several times, however they all refused to
let him into the building.

. _ stated that she and a group of juveniles were standing by the large window where you can see outside watching

xavier pacing back and forth “talking out his neck”, talking about “opps” and stuff like that.“ was getting loud with

Exavier as well saying, “l don’t know why you are calling these girls bitches”. She stated she couldn't hear the conversation
verbatim because the doors were closed and unless you put your ear to the window.

. - and m started to walk off, and Exavier followed them to the parking ring (parking lot) and they continue to
arque. She stated, "Next thing you know all started fighting physically, and that is when Exavier pulled out his gun and shot

* She stated she heard one gun shot and observed Exavier shoot” She stated it occurred in the parking lot. She
stated there were cars, but she could see the physical altercation where Exavier was on the ground, Exavier got back up and
was walking backwards pointing his gun and there were several other people out there walking up to the rec center who
witnessed it.

. - stated she used Furo’s phone to call 911. She stated that 911 didn’t answer the phone. She stated when they did
answer, she was placed on hold. — stated everyone heard the gun shot, the lifeguards, the female who was taking
care of the kids, and several others. Everyone was asking what happened and she told them Exavier had just shot someone.

« Exavier left on foot and was wearing all black (black ski mask, his hood was on, shoes). She stated she saw Exavier pointing

the firearm and shoot the gun and thought he had it in his right hand. She stated she couldn’t hear if Exavier said anything
because everyone started screaming and running towards

. m stated thatq was her acquaintance and she had known him since they went to Ramsey Middle School
ogether. She stated he currently attended Central High School.

. described Exavier as always being rude, disrespectful, with a bad attitude. She stated he talks to youth “Crazy”,
and he I1s not one to talk to if you are mad. She stated she understands because sometimes kids are doing too much,
however he kicks people out and is still rude. She said sometimes he is nice, but then sometimes he says stuff in a “rude
manner”.

The interview concluded.

Narrative 50 Created by: FREDERICKSON, EMILEE (211702) 01/19/2023, 11:30
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On 01/18/2023 at about 1710 hours, | (Sgt P. Lee) was notified by Cmdr S. Lohse Johnson to respond to an aggravated assault
call at 270 Lexington Pkwy N (JIMMY LEE REC CENTER). The information provided was the suspect (later identified as EXAVIR
DWAYNE BINFORD DOB 04/11/96) is an employee of the Rec Center who shot a juvenile victim (|| | | | JJENEEEE 0B
-06).

Additional details | knew up to that point was a fight occurred at the Rec Center. There was a dispute between the suspect and
victim. The suspect shot the victim and fled the scene. The victim was transported to the hospital. The suspect was located by
assisting squads and taken into custody outside of 1663 Stillwater Ave E. The suspect was currently at SPPD HQ.

At about 1839 hours, Sgt M. Onnen and | conducted an in-custody Miranda Rights interview with BINFORD at the SPPD HQ
Homicide/Robbery interview room. The interview was audio recorded and later uploaded to the media vault. | read the SPPD
Miranda Rights form that included the Miranda Warning to him. He acknowledged he understood his rights by writing his initials
and signing his name on the form. He was given his copy of the form. My copy of the form was later uploaded to the media vault.

It should be noted that when | was asking BINFORD for his personal information such as name, date of birth and address, | also
asked him for his phone number. He gave his cell phone number as 651-529-6818. | asked for an alternate contact phone
number. He responded, 'My my work phone but | probably won't had that job no more." | told him that | would take his work cell
phone number which he gave as 763-354-0823. There was a section to ask about employer information which | did. He
responded it was 'the City' and acknowledged it was the City of St Paul. | asked him to confirm that he works at the Rec Center
referring to the JIMMY LEE REC CENTER, and he responded, 'l was.'

| advised BINFORD that his rights were read to him, and he acknowledged he understood them. | asked if he wanted talk and he
responded 'l mean where do we startin from like the earlier in the day or...when the incident just happened or..." | told to start from
what led up to it referring to the shooting.

The following summarized what we talked about.

He said what led up to it was he just started this position at 'Jimmy Lee CRS' and was previously at the Arlington Rec Center for
four years. He got moved to the Jimmy Lee Rec Center in August 2022.

For today's incident, he said 'So | think whoever | harm | want to say he goes to...l don't even know how old he is, | just know |
always had a problem with him since | started working up there.'

He explained the Rec Center would get calls from 'Central’ which he verified is Central High School. The high school would call the
Rec Center's front desk to tell them "Yeah it's one of days.' and 'Lock the doors so that's how it really started.’" He added it was
always the same thing with that group referring to the victim and the victim's group. He also added it was the victim and the
victim's group who were always involved with fights at the high school and at the Rec Center.

Today he acknowledged the Rec Center received a phone call from Central High School, so his front desk staff locked the doors.
The high school did not tell them much other than 'today is one of them days.' and he and his staff new what that meant. The call
time from the high school would have been around 3 PM because that was around the time the high school let out and the time
their gym open.

When they get notified by the high school, what they do at the Rec Center is to lock the doors. They do not allow anyone in and if
a guest leaves the Rec Center, then the guest would not be allowed back inside.

He described himself as 'l was fed up that day.' and he clocked out early. He started to mention something about 'some little girl'
but stopped himself. He then stated 'l don't know, | got, how should | say this. I'm not. | know right from wrong. | just know my
temper where it can go, you know what I'm saying.'

He explained what made him leave the building was 'some young lady' had a problem with him telling them (guests) no one could
be in the building because a fight was going on. He stated the police came to the Rec Center and left so he was trying to make
sure his building was secured.

I noted he stated, 'We had words with the female some young lady | don't even know her name.' He stated she was trying to be
loud. He tried to explain to her this was his building and he wanted to run it smoothly because if something happened then he
would be in trouble.

| noted he stated, 'So we had words in the building, me and the young lady." He went on to say it was more so because she let her
brother into the building. He told 'him' referring to the young lady's brother not to come into the building because he was part of the
group causing trouble and he should stay with that group.

| asked and he clarified his dispute with the young lady happened after the Rec Center went into lockdown and before the shooting
incident. He had already clocked out because he was upset and recalled punching out of work at 'like 4:30.'
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He talked about not liking to get into argument because his first month on this job was 'bullshit bro, the kids be fighting, they be
coming up there to do what they want to do...'

He stated because this young lady did not do what the Rec Center had asked regarding the Rec Center's lockdown rules that she
became upset with him. He told her that he was not going to put her out, but she needed to understand the Rec Center's rules.
He then clocked out and was leaving the building. There were still 'kids' outside of the Rec Center arguing and fighting under the
vestibule area.

He was walking and the same girl referring to the young lady he had gotten into an argument with inside the building ended up
leaving as well. He reminded her about all the 'extra stuff' she had done inside and now was leaving as well.

He got into an argument with her, was getting ready to leave and she was talking about him to her friends. He stated he was
already upset so he responded with 'Shut the fuck up.' to her. He continued by saying 'the victim' stepped up and told him not to
talk to her like that. He noted leading up to that point 'the victim' had been arguing with another girl as well. | noted him to say,
‘Now that's when me and him had words." He stuttered and stated, 'Me and the victim had words." He recalled this was the same
guy that he had problems with on his first week on the job at this Rec Center. He described the victim as someone who always will
make everything about himself.

He went on to say again he left and walked pass the young lady had argued with and who was still talking to her friends about him.
He said something back to her and said it in front of the 'victim' as he walked away.

At this point, Sgt Onnen asked him to clarify the identity of the 'victim." He responded by saying 'l don't even know his name for
real." Sgt Onnen asked him to clarify who the 'victim' was, and he responded 'Whoever yall found at Jimmy Lee on the ground.
That's the victim who I'm talking about." He described the victim wearing a red coat, red hooded sweatshirt under the red coat,
gray jogging pants and black crocs.

| asked what race the victim was and he responded the victim is Black and could be more White, biracial.

He talked about having an argument with the victim who also had a friend with him. He realized he was 'kinda talking to both these
guys, whoever his friend's doing he doing." He described at that point they were 'talking shit' and he was still going to leave but
‘came back." He thought he forgot something in his office such as his work key or work phone and did not want to lose them. He
continued to argue with the victim and the victim's friend. He stated 'l ain't gonna lie, | felt threatened.' even though they were
teens.

| asked him to explain how it was that he felt threatened. He stated the victim thought he (suspect) was trying to brandish or reach
for his (suspect's) gun when he was reaching into the exterior left front upper jacket pocket. He was digging into that jacket pocket
because he was looking for his bus pass. He and the victim were still arguing, and the victim thought he (suspect) was reaching
for his (suspect's) gun which caused the victim to assume 'Oh you clutching your gun.' towards the victim. He said the victim would
not know he (suspect) had a gun and even if he did, it was legal.

| asked if he had his gun on him. He responded first about having his gun on him and an incident involving his vehicle which did
not make sense. | cut him off because he was not answering if he had his gun on him or not. | asked him where his gun was at
during his argument with the victim. He gestured by reaching into his left interior jacket pocket with his right and said he only took
out his gun 'after they fucked me up.'

| went back to talk about him reaching into his exterior left upper jacket pocket and what the victim assumed he was doing. He said
the victim told the victim's friend to 'call what's his name and tell him to bring all the sticks.' | asked what sticks meant and he did
not know but though it probably meant to bring all the weapons.

He said up to that point he was still going to walk away to catch the bus. He told the victim and the victim's friend if they wanted to
do something to him that he would be at the bus stop.

One of his co-workers came outside and got in the middle of the argument between him, the victim and the victim's friend.

He was walking towards Marshall Ave because his bus stop is at Oxford St/Selby Ave. The victim continued to talk 'shit' to him as
his co-worker got in the middle between them. He continued to walk off and told- that he felt threatened because of the
past behaviors of the victim and the victim's friend.

He went on quick rant about not really talking to those kids referring to the victim and his group of friends. He mentioned almost
fighting with them on his first week on the job at this Rec Center.

| directed his attention back to talk about him saying he was walking away from the argument with the victim. He explained

stood nearby as well as the victim and the victim's friend as he walked away. He added there as a vehicle parked near them
which he could have walked around but he decided not to. He walked pass the victim's friend who got in his way. He responded
by extending his arm and pushed the victim's friend to get back which he described as a 'baby shove' to create space. It should be
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noted he described the victim's friend as someone who wore a blue coat, and the altercation was still on the Rec Center property
(parking lot).

After he shoved the victim's friend, the victim and the victim's friend ran up on him. He admitted to shoving the victim's friend,
however he did not ball up his fists. He believed the victim's friend had blocked his path on purpose as well.

The victim and the victim's friend were ready to fight him after the shove. He started to back away and they got up on him. He
described wearing his jacket unzipped with the hood up over his head during this time. | noted he said 'l ain't gonna lie. They they
jumped me, they jumped me.'

| asked him to describe how the victim and the victim's friend rushed him. | observed him getting up from his chair, walk a couple
of feet away from the interview table and stood facing Sgt Onnen and me from about five feet away. He clenched his fists and
brought them up near his chest and stated that was how they rushed, grabbed, and hit him.

He ended up on the ground and on his back but was able to 'flip him' referring to the victim. He was able to throw a couple of
punches as the victim's friend ran up on him. He was able to throw punches at the victim's friend as well.

He was able to get off the ground and covered up his face/head by using his hands/arms to shield himself as they were beating on
him. Immediately after giving those details, | heard and noted him say 'l ain't gonna lie...I pulled out my pistol and shit.' and 'That's
really it though..." He added that 'l just felt like if you wouldn't put your hands on me this wouldn't happen you know what I'm
saying but.'

He explained when he was getting jumped that everything was getting pulled off of him. He demonstrated by pulling his jacket over
his head with his upper torso bending over forward. He pointed out to large tear on the right rear of his jacket which happened
when he was getting jumped.

He mentioned before they fought that 'he' possibly referring to the victim was on the phone saying, 'Call what's man, we'll smoke
you.'

| asked him when did he pull out his gun. He said he pulled out his gun after they beat him and 'like literally a second after they
beat me and they kinda...' He acknowledged he was on his feet and did not chase them. | asked what they (referring to the victim
and the victim's friend) were doing. He responded, 'Looking stupid just sittin there." and stood there without backing away. He also
did not back away. | asked how far apart he was from the victim and the victim's friend. He responded with a 'Good question.' He
said there was a red car parked near where the victim was at. He described being 'like ten yards piece' regarding the distance
between him, the victim and the victim's friend. He followed that statement up by saying 'maybe 10, 15 yards.' | asked if that was
distance between him and the victim when he shot the victim and he responded, 'Um hmmm.'

| asked if he felt he had no choice at that time referring to shooting the victim. He responded he was not going to lie and could
have done something different. He said now that he has reflected on it that he is not a dumbass, not mentally unstable and very
logical that he felt 'if they wouldn't put they hands on me, | wouldn't have shot that boy and he know that." He followed that up by
saying they made his job hard, and he just wanted to come to work every day.

| asked him how big the victim was. He stood up and put one of his hands to about his eyes to demonstrate how tall the victim was
compared to him. It should be noted the suspect is listed at 6-03 and 200 Ibs on his MN DVS driver's license. He said the victim
was six feet tall and about 170 Ibs or 180 Ibs. He said the victim was not big but talked big. He said the victim's friend was 'not
that big though.'

| asked when he was rushed by the victim and the victim's friend and being beaten by them, if he saw them with any weapons and
he responded no. He repeated himself by saying he did not see them with any weapons just like they did not see him with a gun
until 'the point.'

He said the victim and victim's friend talked like they 'gun toters' which but him on defense. He was not going to let these 'kids' do
anything to him although it was not intentional on his part.

He said he did not know the defense law here, but he was rushed and jumped. He suffered a busted lip.

| noted he grabbed and lifted his upper lip to show what looked to be a small fresh cut underneath the top portion of his lip. It
should be noted he had visible injuries to his right upper eyebrow area and outer lips area near his mouth which he later said was
caused by the victim and the victim's friend.

| asked if there was anything that obstructed him from behind that would have prevent him from running away in referring to why he
did not de escalate the situation by retreating during the argument and fight.

He responded his intention at first was to run but the victim and the victim's friend put their hands on him first. He said he does not
go around hitting people. He said he knew they did not like him because he is the new guy around town. He started to talk about
when he first started the job at this Rec Center that they were asking who the new guy was referring to him and why he was hired.
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| heard and noted he said this incident was not intentional because he did not plan to come to work with the intent to harm
someone.

| asked him why did he have to shoot the victim after the fight because they all just stood there. He said he was not going to lie, it
was just in the moment, he did not have an explanation and he was sorry.

| heard and noted him say 'I'm fucked right now but when shit happens bro it happens bro like.'

| asked how many times did he shoot and he responded 'one time." | asked if he knew that he hit the victim referring to the
gunshot.

He took a deep breath and said he initially did not know the victim was shot. After the gunshot the victim fell, and he peaked
around the vehicle (parked vehicle) where the victim had been standing by. He said he looked, saw the victim and 'I'm like fuck.'

| asked where the victim's friend was at that point.
He responded the victim's friend was probably screaming and yelling.
| went back to ask him what he did after he saw the victim on the ground and he said 'l ain't gonna lie, | fled bro.'

He said this was the first time he experienced something like this happening to him. He again repeated himself by saying he is a
nice guy and did not just wake up today to kill this dude.

He admitted everything happened fast and the victim fell down. He then said he thought the victim was playing dead when the
victim fell but as soon as he peaked and saw the victim he knew 'I'm fucked.' He said at the same time he felt what happened was
because the victim and the victim's friend jumped him.

| asked him where his co-worker [JJj was at that point.

He responded by saying. was probably still trying to get the victim and victim's friend off him. He said when he shot his gun, he
heard say 'Oh fuck." and 'Oh my God.' and that ran away. He said whoever was out there would have seen what he did.
He again said he did it, but it was not intentional.

I noted he talked again about getting jumped by these kids and got his jacket pulled over him. He said it was not on his mind, but
he got his gun license for a reason.

| wanted to talk to him again about what happened after he shot the victim. | asked why he did not offer help to the victim and or
helped himself. He was not able to give an exact answer and said, 'That's a good question.' and 'Nah, you definitely valid for that.
That's a good question for sure." He said the shooting was not intentional. He acknowledged he had his personal cell phone on
him at that time and admitted he could have called 911 even if he had moved a safe distance away.

| told him he could have called the police. He said he was scared and 'l know better now.'

| asked him where he ran to after the shooting.

He said he ran to Oxford St/Selby Ave. He called his mother and told her 'That | fucked up. | did some dumb shit." His mother
wanted to see him before 'they' got to him referring to the police. He and his mother agreed to meet downtown St Paul. He took
the bus #21 to downtown St Paul at 5th/Minnesota where his mother was waiting for him.

He clarified it was just his mother who came to pick him up. He and his mother left downtown and drove straight home to their
address of 1663 Stillwater Ave E. He said when they got home the police were already on them. He said as he and his mother
were getting out of her vehicle the police pulled up on them.

| went back to ask him about additional details regarding his argument with the victim and victim's friend. | asked why he did not
remove himself from the situation and why he did not just go back into the Rec Center.

He responded he knew he fucked up and did not need to be lectured. He said he knew he could have left 'My thing is don't put
your hands on somebody you don't know repercussion don't do that because | don't go around beating up on people and expect
them to not do shit.’

He said the injuries on his face were not self-inflicted and caused by the victim and the victim's friend.

Sgt Onnen asked him some follow up questions.

Sgt Onnen asked how he clocked out of work. He said the work clock machine was mounted on the wall where one would enter
their employee code and do a fingerprint scan.
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Sgt Onnen asked about the girl who got into the building during the lockdown. He said the building was already locked down and
he did not know how the girl got in because he was outside telling everyone who was with 'that group' to not go in. He said they
had an open gym hosted by a group called 'JK' and the girl may already have been inside.

Sgt Onnen asked about him having said 'the other victim' which he clarified is the victim's friend who jumped him and who also was
wearing the blue coat.

Sgt Onnen asked him about 'talking shit' and what it meant. He explained it was whatever they were saying to him that he was
saying it back to them. He said they said, 'fuck my mom' and he responded back to them 'fuck your mom.'

He never told the victim and the victim's friend that he had a gun and did not brandish his gun at them during their argument.

He acknowledged he keeps his gun in his left front upper interior jacket pocket. He said when he pulled out his gun that he did not
say anything. They did not say anything to him, but they saw him pull out his gun. He said they could have run away just like he
could have as well. He acknowledged they did not react to him other than 'look stupid.'

He recalled the victim had earlier dare him to shoot the victim when he was reaching into his front jacket pocket to look for his bus
pass.

He was asked how long it took when he pulled out his gun to when he shot his gun, and he responded with snapping his fingers.
He did not say anything after the shooting, and they did not say anything to him. He heard a lot of screaming as he ran away.

Regarding his co worker [JJJJjj full name, he spelled it as ||| . and who is a White male.

He described his mother' vehicle that picked him up as a Chevy SUV.

He described his gun as a 9 mm Taurus U2C with upgrades on it and it was the gun he shot the victim. He added his gun has a
extended magazine and there were a total of 17 rounds. He also added he carries his gun loaded in his inside jacket pocket.

He was asked if he was familiar with the City of St Paul's policy regarding employee having gun(s) at work in relation him being a
permit to carry person. He said he never asked his employer about the City's policy and procedures for carrying a gun on duty at
work. He said he normally does not carry his gun with him at work. He said he would keep his gun in his car while at work
however he has not driven his car to work because the catalytic converter got stolen. He said he knew that St Paul employees
could have their gun(s) in their car at work but not on their person at work. He said if he was at the Rec Center with his family that
he could have his gun with him because it is public property. He said he knew there was not a ban of firearms because Arlington
Rec Center has given out gun locks.

Regarding him carrying his gun at work, he said he did not tell anyone about it and they referring to his employer did not know he
carried his gun at work.

He acknowledged Kia vehicles gets stolen a lot and was asked why he would keep his gun inside his car since he said he had
earlier stated he owned a Kia. He said he was not worried about his vehicle getting stolen. He said he was concern if his gun got
found in the Rec Center that he would have some explanation to do. He said he just recently started carrying his gun in his jacket
pocket. He said he got robbed when he was 14 years old and that messed him up.

He acknowledged looking back at this incident that he would have handled it different. He explained in the moment of things
related to this incident that 'my mind just clicked bro." while snapping his fingers and 'shit happen bro.'

He was asked what he recalled about his permit to carry training in relating to after shooting his gun. He said he did not know
because it has been over a year since he took that training class. He was asked based on his training what he was supposed to
do if he shot someone. He responded, 'You really supposed to call them peoples.' referring to calling the police.

He said he is not a threat. He said he felt threatened by those kids referring to the victim and the victim's friend.

As we talked to him about the trouble the kids caused at the Rec Center, he said he could not get the image of the victim out of his
head. He said it was the image of him peaking over to see the victim laying on the ground before he ran away. He said he was
'going to be fucked up forever.' and 'l can't take it back; he can't get his life back..." He continued to repeat himself from earlier
about being beaten up by the victim and the victim's friend.

| asked if he remembered when he was getting assaulted if there were other people around.

He said he remembered 'these two dudes' being in front of him. He again said he remembered being there as he tried to walk
away. He talked about the dude in blue referring to the victim's friend who blocked his path and he responded by shoving the
victim's friend to move away.

| asked if he remembered anyone else being in the background of the victim when he pulled the trigger.
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. is a Community Rec Director at Jimmy Lee, Merriam Park, and Martin Luther King Recreation Centers. He doesn’t have
any staff on his payroll. Exavir is underneath him, however, doesn’t report to him. Exavir's direct supervisor is Eric
Thompson. His role is program and outreach, and doesn’t necessarily need to be onsite, however likes to be onsite for
outreach. He stated one of the coordinator’s is out for FMLA, so he has been stepping in to fill those shoes right now.

He stated when the teens come after school, he usually will direct them to where they go. Today they were short on staff, so
usually Exavir has his staff helps out. This evening it was him, Exavir, India Woods, and Furo Ejero.

He stated today the kids were being directed to go down the gym at “JK Movements-Johnny Allen” to have open gym.

At 310PM they got a call from Central High School to lock the doors at Jimmy Lee, because “kids were doing a lot”. He
wasn'’t positive who called, because India took the call. He stated it was somebody from their front desk and thought it may
have been “Cindy”.

He stated he and Exavir went outside and observed a large group of kids at the parking lot entrance near Marshall Ave. He
stated they stood near the door, and they try to not get involved. They had locked the doors and approximately five minutes
later, it slowed down. They unlocked the doors. Exavir went downstairs to check on open gym.

At approximately 320-325PM, the unruly group was “mobbing again” so they locked the doors again. Exavir came back
upstairs.

At approximately 330PM, Exavir and India walked down there, and the kids were not listening. They came back up towards
the entrance, and. stated he called the police at approximately 335PM. He estimated the group to be approximately 20-25
kids. He said only a few were fighting, but the group was loud, messing around, and not listening to staff.

stated the police came, they didn’t get out, however drove through the parking lot, which calmed them down for a minute,
ut not long. He described the group as “tense”.

Exavir was “escalating, he didn’t really do anything, you could tell he was agitated”. stated Exavir generally has a good
relationship with the teens, that tough love stuff, and it worked for the most part to my opinion”. The kids for the most part
knew the rules and what was expected of them.

E stated at approximately 345PM Rec check has to go the pool at 4PM. The staff was not there, so he brought the kids to
e pool. [J] came out at approximately 352PM.

He and Exavir were outside. The doors were locked, and a boy came up. A girl was inside the building, pushed the door
open, and let the boy in. Exavir and the girl get into a heat verbal back and forth. He was telling her that she couldn’t do that.
He was “jawing” back at Exavir and mentioned she would “take it there”. Exavir challenged her “Oh you going to take it
there?”.

A couple minutes had passed, and he went in. tries to follow Exavir’s lead and support him even though he is technically
above him.. went over to the group who was In the corner and told them they should leave. They were not listening telling
Hkthey were told they could stay by other staff. . told them they needed to leave because Exavir was “tripping” out and
alking reckless.

Exavir was agitated and said something similar to, “Its all good, but you can’t be here, | make the rules, | run it”. The female
told Exavir, “India said | could be in here”. Exavir said, “What the fuck does that mean, | am the one who runs the building
type shit”. At this point, Exavir and India get into a small verbal altercation about this incident. Exavir was heated, goes in
and clocks out.. didn’t recall at what time he clocked out and thought Exavir was supposed to close that evening. India
was frustrated then. Exavir left the building. India went to the party room.

. was trying to figure out staffing since he left. While doing that the kids started banging on the door. He didn’t know what
was going on, however the kids told Furo that Exavir was talking reckless and “showed something”. He stated, “They used a
slang word, and he didn’t recall, however thought they were referring to a firearm, maybe a burner”. told Furo to let them
into the building and he would bring them into the back gym. said, “I want to be honest with you, | didn’t think he had a
gun, | thought they just thought they saw something”. He stated he called his supervisor (Eric Thompson) and told him that
he needed to get down there.

walked the kids to the back gym, and he came back out. Exavir came back to the building pretty quickly and began
anging on the doors. told the others, “Don’t he have a key?” Furo told him he wasn’t going to let him in. stated he
ignored him and was trying to wait for Eric to come. . was thinking, “What is he doing, he is going to get us in trouble”.

India came back, and the doors were locked so other teens couldn’t come in. India told he thought that Exavir was
arguing with the kids outside. stated there were a few kids near the front steps, including the kid that was shot.. walked
outside and they were verbally arguing with one another.
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. told Exavir multiple times (approximatel 80 times) to leave and stated, “if you ask others, the white guy, which is me was
e one who kept telling X to leave and get out of here”.

« Exavir was telling the kids, “Lets go to the bus stop” and the kids were telling him, “Were going to the bus stop”.

. F stated at one point he was between the kids and Exavir and continued to try to diffuse the situation and get Exavir to
eave.. was telling the kids to “Let it go, let it go”. Exavir then said, “Their following me”. The kids said, “Well you told us to
follow you”. At one point the kids were following Exavir, but Exavir was instigating and “running his mouth”. Eventually,
Exavir circled back around and was behind the kids. Exavir pushed one of the shorter kids (not the one that got shot). This
led to a physical altercation and the two kids were punching Exavir. Exavir was fighting as well.. stated he thought there
were three kids fighting Exavir and he was on the ground.

. ! stated he tried to tell Exavir to “go”. Exavir took his jacket off, and he didn't know if he did it before or after the incident.
e took out of a gun out of the chest area. il stated, “| was like what the fuck. It happened so quickly, he shot, | think he shot
one time. stated he was approximately 5 feet away from Exavir when he shot and estimated that Exavir was
approximately 10-12 feet away from who he shot. stated, “I don't know how the fuck he even hit him!” He stated that
where the juvenile was shot is where he dropped which was near the front driver’s side tire of a sedan.

. . wasn’t sure if the parking lot view from the cameras caught the incident. He stated it was in the parking lot where the
cars were and progressively moved further S/E into the lot.

. . thought the juvenile was shot in the chest area and was bleeding heavy.
. . wasn’t sure what hand Exavir had the gun in but described the gun as black in color.

. 'nwasn’t certain if Exavir left his jacket, however he stated he did, and it was near the shooting. . described his jacket as
ight blue in color and wanted to get it back as soon as possible.

. . stated that Exavir ran on foot from the scene.

The interview concluded.

Narrative 56 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/19/2023, 14:10

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 01/19/2023, | (Sgt P. Lee) was contacted by squad 199 (Ofc Y. Vang) who was working the SPPD West District front desk
regarding an anonymous complainant who has a possible withess name to the shooting yesterday. The caller wanted to remain
anonymous and called from phone number . The name provided for the possible witness was )
and who is a Central High School student. The desk officers called the complainant a couple of times and did not get an answer as
the call went straight to a voice mailbox that was not set up. SPPD PCN case number 23010259.

| called the phone number for the complainant and did not get answer. The call went to the voice mailbox that was not set up so |
was not able to leave a voice message.

| searched the SPPD RMS for previous police contacts with the first and last names of m" going back the last eight

years and got no results. | searched the complainant's phone number for previous police contacts within about the last three years
and got no results.

Narrative 57 Created by: BYRNE, CHRISTOPHER (88700) 01/19/2023, 14:27

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 01/19/2023 | Sgt C. Byrne received a call from dispatch to call a charge nurse at regions pertaining to evidence related to this
case.

| contacted Evon Anderson F Charge Nurse at Regions who told me they had mis labeled evidence that was related
to this case. She said that 2 packages were labeled with 2 different names. One under the name Devon Turner with the date of
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| Jan.18th. The other has Temperance R Doe/Robbinson with the date of Jan 6th. Both items were taken by police on the 18th.

Narrative 58 Created by: ONNEN, MATTHEW (515000) 01/19/2023, 14:35
Synopsis :
Narrative :
I, Sgt M Onnen, along with Sgt P Lee, responded to Reaions Hospital to speak with family of and check his medical
status. We arrived and met with his parents (mom , , dad \ ) in the waiting room
of West 3 Surgical. They both stated they wanted 10 speak with us and want the person responsible for s ooting*I held

accountable. confirmed her son is , -06. She said is a student at Central High and
goes to the Jimmy Lee Rec Center after school. e knew he was at the location on 01-18- ecause he is required to check in
with her very often on his activities and whereabouts. She was at work when she found out from other people that was
the person that was shot at the Jimmy Lee Rec Center.

%said that he knew the person that shot“ (Exavir Binford) was an employee of the Jimmy Lee Rec Center.

said that he knows that Exavir has had issues In the past dealing with Kids. _ said that Exavir did not know how to deal with or
talk to the kids and would call kids "bitches" among other things. - also said that other employees had made complaints
against Exavir because of how he treats the kids.

Hagreed to sign a Medical Release Form on behalf Ofm. since he is her child and a minor. The original signed
edical Release was later scanned and uploaded to the Media Vault. e also let staff know that it was fine for them to release

information on- to us (police). Regions Hospital Staff took a copy of the signed medical release.

q said thatq is best friend. She said- mom is- who lives near-. -
provided a telephone number for 0 ;

andF thought that a female named ' was withF when he was shot. It should be noted that there was
a that was interviewed at SPPD HQ the night of the incident.

requested thatHI name not be released publicly. She was also upset that no one from the City of St Paul or
immy Lee Rec Center had not reached out to her yet.

Regions medical staff advised that [ as still in critical condition but stable and on a ventilator.
We contacted Dr Mills of the Ramsey County Medical Examiner's Office. She and Dr Howell went back to Regions Hospital with

us. Regions staff removed the dressing covering |Jij head so we could photograph the injuries. Photographs of
were taken and uploaded to the Media Vault.

| later caIIed_ m) to attempt to speak with- | received voicemail and left a message with my contact
information and a request to be contacted back.

Narrative 59 Created by: SKEATE, BRIAN (638389) 01/19/2023, 17:34

Synopsis :

Supplemental report.

Narrative :

I, OFF. B. SKEATE, am currently temporarily assigned to the SPPD ASPIRE Unit.

On 01/18/2023 at approximately 1620 hours OFF. A. SMITH and | responded to JIMMY LEE RECREATION CENTER located at
270 LEXINGTON PKWY N for a report of a shooting that had occurred.

Initial notes for the call stated that there was a juvenile on scene who had suffered a gunshot wound to the head and was non-
responsive. Officers who were already on scene provided updates over the radio that the shooting suspect was still outstanding
and was described as a black male wearing all black clothing and had fled the scene on foot.

Upon arrival in the area, we began checking the immediate and surrounding area for a possible suspect with negative results.

about:blank 39/137
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After checking the area, we responded to the shooting scene at the Recreation Center and signed the crime scene log upon
entering the scene.

Upon entering the scene, it was apparent that the scene was under control by the numerous Officers who were already there. A
short time later we were informed that the suspected shooter was in custody at 1663 STILLWATER AVE. We stayed for a short
time and then exited the scene.

After exiting the scene, we responded to 1663 STILLWATER AVE to assist additional Officers with holding the perimeter of the
home in the case a search warrant needed to be executed. We held the perimeter until we were dismissed from the scene at
approximately 1930 hours.

See primary and supplemental reports for further information.

Narrative 60 Created by: NYHUS, JOSHUA (499606) 01/19/2023, 19:42

about:blank

Synopsis :
Narrative :

I, Officer Joshua Nyhus, am currently assigned to the Saint Paul Police Forensic Services Unit. | am a certified Glock armorer. On
01/19/2023 | took the following firearm to the Saint Paul Police Test Fire Area for test firing:

Make: Taurus

Model: G2C PT111

Serial Number: _

Officer Phuong Chung assisted me at the Forensic Services Unit evidence storage room and at the Saint Paul Police Test Fire
Area.

The firearm evidence box was received tape, signed, and sealed. Before | began the inspection of the firearm, | wore a pair of
nitrile examination gloves. We checked the functionality and deemed this firearm safe to test fire. | loaded the firearm with two live
rounds, fired two rounds and collected the two spent cartridge cases. | then secured the spent cartridge cases in a test fire
envelope. | tape sealed, dated, and initialed the envelope. | returned the firearm to the firearm box and it was zip tide, tape
sealed, dated, and initialed.

Later, | returned the firearm to the Saint Paul Police Department Property Room.

| returned the test fired cartridge cases to FSU Evidence Storage Room.

Narrative 61 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/20/2023, 09:02

Synopsis :

Narrative :

On 01/20/2023, | (Sgt P. Lee) sent a copy of this supplemental report to the SPPD Impound Lot to advise the release of the hold on
the suspect vehicle (Chevrolet Equinox, MN license plates KAF634) and it can be moved out of the garage. | spoke on the phone
with the owner (Regina Hicks). She will make arrangement with the Impound Lot to get her vehicle out.

A separate supplemental report will follow to document the consent to search on the vehicle.

Narrative 62 Created by: ONNEN, MATTHEW (515000) 01/20/2023, 09:06

Synopsis :

40137
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Minnesota Statute: 609.221.1, with reference to: 609.11.5(a)
Maximum Sentence: 20 years, or $30,000 fine, or both
Offense Level: Felony

| signed the criminal complaint in echarging.

Narrative 66 Created by: ONNEN, MATTHEW (515000) 01/20/2023, 15:21

Synopsis :
Narrative :

I, Sgt M Onnen, called Central High School and spoke to Principal Cherise Ayers. She confirmed that after the shooting at Jimmy
Lee Rec on 01-18-23 that they went into lockdown. She confirmed that several students came to the school trying to get in so they

let them back in the school even though they were lockdown. Cherise confirmed that one of the students was . She
said that when she saw him during the lockdown thatH seemed very shocked and traumatized by the incident based on his
behavior and how he normally acts. Cherise said that 5-6 other Central High School students came during the lockdown and were
also letin.

, , as being
which matches what
) and

voicemail where | left a

Cherise mentioned that” might have recently been arrested. | later located a
booked into the Ramsey County JDC on 10-29-22. Cherise provided an address of
described. listed parents with the school are
). | calle and it was not in service. e other
message with my contact information and a request to be contacted back.

received

Sgt Lee and | went to* to attempt to locate since we could not make contact via telephone. At no
one answered the door after knocking and ringing the doorbell. We left our business cards attached to the mailbox next to the front
door.

We next responded to Central High School to further attempt to make contact with! We spoke to Cherise who advised
that was currently at school but she contacted his parents and we needed to wait until they arrived to speak to him. Once

an arrived we moved to the principal's office where” immediately began screaming at us about how we
embarrassed his son by coming to his school. He said that we should not have come there but rather called him or went to his
home. We tried to explain that we tried all that and got no response so that was why we came to school. He further screamed
about how he was upset that we did not come out when they complained about Exavir prior (last year). In yelling he
said that he wasn't going to let speak with us. We left our business cards with them and advised them to contact us if
they wanted to speak with us at Police Headquarters. This conversation was digitally recorded. The digital recording was later
uploaded to the Media Vault.

Narrative 67 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/21/2023, 12:38

Synopsis :

Narrative :

On 01/20/2023. | (Sat P. Lee) received a voice message from phone number m The caller identified herself as

)- She saw a social media video of the aftermath of the shooting and wanted to pass that
information along to the police. She asked for a call back after 6 PM. | decided to call her before her requested time due to the
nature of the incident and investigation.

| called her back at about 1230 hours and the following summarized the phone call.

Her sister lives atm which is an apartment building to east of the Rec Center parking lot. She did not identify her
sister or give her sister's exact address due to not wanting to disturb her sister's mental health.

She received a phone call from her sister on 01/18/2023. Her sister told her about hearing a gunshot, a female screaming and
eventually police activities in the Rec Center parking lot.

She google search the Jimmy Lee Rec Center.

about:blank 43/137
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She came upon a Facebook profile of "Seven Anderson" who posted a video of the aftermath of the shooting. The video showed a
person laying on the ground of the parking lot with several people people standing around. There was a person talking on his or
her cell phone among the people standing around the person on the ground. It appeared to her the video was recorded on the
balcony of the same apartment building where her sister lives.

She saw that there were some disrespectful comments on the Facebook profile Seven Anderson about the video being posted.
The video was eventually taken down.

She later searched Facebook and saw under profile "Quanny Quanny" the same video had been posted there as well. She noted
the profile "Quanny Quanny" had been vocal towards the profile "Seven Anderson" about the video being posted on Seven
Anderson's page.

She wanted to bring the video to the police's attention. She was concern the video may set off threats.

She later added there was a second video that showed the police in the parking lot.

| advised her that | would look into both Facebook profiles and look for the video. | also advised her that she could contact
Facebook to report the videos.

Sgt Onnen assisted with locating the Facebook profile "Seven Anderson" which had the video posted of the aftermath of the
shooting. The video was originally posted by Facebook profile "King Lamond." The video was about 35 seconds long. The video
played in two parts. The first part captured a person laying on ground in the parking next to a parked vehicle. There were several
people pacing around near the person on the ground. The video looked to be recorded from an apartment balcony that faced the
Rec Center parking lot. The second part captured squads with their emergency lights flashing in the same parking lot.

A Snag It video copy was made of the aftermath of the shooting video and later uploaded to the media vault.

The Facebook profile "Quanny Quanny" was located and no videos related to the shooting was found. The other Facebook profile
"King Lamond" was located and no videos related to the shooting was found.

A Facebook preservation was done on Facebook profile "Seven Anderson." Reference Facebook case number 7504703.

Narrative 68 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/22/2023, 13:35

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 01/19/2023, | (Sgt P. Lee) received a missed call from phone number * (the anonymous caller under PCN
23010259) and who left a voice message that was about two minutes long. The time of the voice message was 1616 hours.

| listened to the voice message and summarized it as followed.

The caller called about the rec center shooting and identified the suspect (Exavir Binford) by first name and last name.

said the suspect is ! and has information that might help the case "of those young guys that may have been
involved." works at "their school Central." mentioned the name of a ' "who is light skin, may be a friend
of Juvauthictim) and made some retaliation threats on social media. - wanted to remain anonymous. asked for a call
back at phone number_.

felt bad for

F F and believed he was protecting himself from the kids she described as ruthless and reckless. [JJj
added the kids did no

ave structure at home and always causes trouble at the rec center.

At about 1945 hours, | received another missed call and a second voice message at 1951 hours. | summarized the second voice
message which was five minutes long as followed.

The caller identified as the suspect's i 2n¢ stated ] was caliing again. ] was afraid to give ] name

and did no want. name In the "article."
- spoke with Jlll mother today and started to talk about” however for unknown reasons to be the voice message cut
out and went mute for a few seconds. talked about working "there" for a few weeks.

to call the police on several occasions and the police did not do anything about it. tal!e!
10 years there and loves the kids there. - mentioned the kids always bothered
enraged and snapped.

talked about having had
about aving worked for
and as time when on that he got so

about:blank 44137
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talked about doing a good job at the rec center and if he was bad that his employer wound not keep him on.
stated there was a lot tha F had to deal with at the rec center however he was not a punk and still wanted to work.
wou

not have taken the job at the rec center if it was that bad.

mentioned.-
-

heard from [JJJj mother that | [Jl] oot iump by about five people and got beat up bad. |Jjjj ] couid not fight back
she called it self defense.

| noted it appeared she was still talking however the voice message ended.

At about 1957 hours, - called back and left a third voice message that was five minutes long. The call time on the third voice
message was 1957 hours. | summarized the voice message as followed.

- got cut off on her previous voice message and wanted to continue saying what- needed to get out.
I o't bad for | I I ' I I took 2 dangerous job at the rec center.

I 't} Il \/ould never have shot the kids and show up to work the next day.

The kids at the rec center did not like ||| [

These things happen because people need to defend themselves.

| noted about half way through the voice message, it appeared the voice message went mute for a few seconds. Once the voice
message continued she stated the following.

- talked about the kids who goes to rec center as coming from an unstable home environment.

[l has not talked to | I
Whatever.- did was because he was hurt.- mentioned- - shapped and popped.
[l \as sad for ] ] an¢ the other involved party.

[} \anted criminal charges against "them boys" and for || i to get iustice because they put their hands on | [

.talked about the boys should have gone home when [JjJjj ] to'd them to do so. The boys beat up ||} [ 2~< |}

was terrified.
[l brother works for the Government and it was self defense. [JJJJj asked that I help JJJjj JJJlij and he is not a bad person.
- talked about the bad behavior from the boys/kids that goes to rec center and their lack of respect for adults.
The three voice messages were later uploaded to the media vault.

On 01/22/2023 at about 1230 hours, | called the anonymous caller and- answered the phone. The following summarized some
points | got from our phone call.

[l cid not want to give [ name.
[l clarified ] used to work at Central High School.

[l 2cain confirmed [} is the || Il 2n¢ had left me voice messages.
! ranted about the bad behaviors of the kids to include the victim ) who attends the rec center. - talked
about those kids have always had it out for | [l because i} is black and has dreads.
went on to say the victim is a gang member, to include the victim's family members and they area associated with the
elbyside Crips.
- talked about the lack of respect the kids who frequents the rec center has towards-- and adults.

During the call with | had to ask [JJJ] several times to let me talk so | could ask questions relating to the name of '!

| noted ecame upset, accused me of being disrespectful to and | had to remind it was own doing.
explaine to' tha mentioned the name of ‘||| Il 2s 2 vitness in ] voice messages and | needed additional
details from so | could try to follow up on it.

about:blank 451137
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F stated when found out the identity of the victim after the shooting incident that started looking for the victim's
acebook profile and found it. As search on Facebook continued,- came across Facebook profile. -

noted [JJJJj saw messages on [l Facebook relating to retaliation for the victim getting shot.

| asked if ll saw or had informationF—! was at the rec center and if he was involved with the fight. [JJj responded
[l ¢ic notknow. ] did not know it he'is even friends with the victim.

! recognized the name of_ B B vhen [ cid ] social media search because ] has seen him before as a
s :

udent at Central High Schoo

After speaking with this caller, | do not have any indications a ||| Il 25 2 witness at the rec center.

| gave- my work phone number and advised to send/text any screen copy images qu-- social media posts
relating to threats or retaliations. It should be noted . stated - has screen copy images of the social media messages and

would be willing to share them.
- continued to repeat her rant about the kids who attend the rec center and their lack of respect for. and authority
1

gures until we finally ended the call. . rants include what she believed were failed safety measures for the rec center
employees and her brother.

- mentioned. and- family will be getting a lawyer for.-

The call with. was audio recorded and later uploaded to the media vault.

Narrative 69 Created by: ONNEN, MATTHEW (515000) 01/22/2023, 14:04

Synopsis :
Narrative :

I, Sgt M Onnen, along with Sgt P Lee, met withH at SPPD Headquarters to ask follow up questions. The interview was
recorded audio and visual from the Homicide Conference Room. The interview was uploaded to Evidence.com.

F provided much of the same details but added the following new or further detailed information (See- original interview report
or further details):

* Exavir is sometimes referred to as “X".
« Exavir is one of the onsite supervisors of Jimmy Lee with one other person.

. . had not seen any of the allegations made against Exavir (treated kids poorly) but said he knew Exavir would swear. The
swearing was not in a derogatory manner.

« Exavir had a good rapport with kids and youth work was something that he was decent at but had a few kids he did not know
how to handle. Since Exavir was there they saw a decline in problems with the kids.

* Jimmy Lee Rec was short staffed so “JK Movements” was running the open gym to assist.

« Exavir usually “takes the lead” on telling problem kids that they can’t enter the building because he has the rapport with the
kids.

« Exavir might have swore at the female that got inside but. did not know what was said.
« Kids being a problem at the building happens “a lot”.

¢ India is front desk staff for Jimmy Lee Rec. . did not think India “overstepped” her role by saying the female could be
inside.

. . knew Exavir clocked out because he could hear the TASS machine.
« Exavir did not say anything after he clocked out and before he walked out of the building.

« India and Exavir are both hardheaded and strong willed.
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. . did not think Eric Thompson made it there before the shooting but thought he got there about, or after, the time the police
arrived.

 When Exavir came back to the locked building trying to get in,. described Exavir as “being in the red” (meaning agitated or
similar).

« Exavir should have had a physical key to open the front door.

. . did not know if anyone was near Exavir when he was banging on the locked front door.

. . got in between Exavir and the kids when he was telling them all to leave.

« Exavir was walking southeast from the building towards the intersection of Marshall and Oxford through the parking lot.

« Exavir changed direction and circled back around! and walked towards the two kids (Juvaughn and Rhashad). He was
now walking northeast in the lot towards the two kids and they “stood their ground”. Exavir walked at them and pushed one
but not hard (straight push). Exavir could have gone around the two kids without touching or making other contact.

. . did not remember anything being said by Exavir or the kids after the fight, before the gun was pulled out, after the gun
was pulled out, after the shot.

. . did not remember trying to separate people during the physical fight and did not remember how it got broken up.
. . did not remember how the large distance occurred after the fight.

o Exavir shot quickly after pulling the gun out from his coat near the left chest area . physically described it).

o . and Exavir have a “decent” working relationship but are not friends outside of work.

. . feels he . tried his best to prevent the situation and get people to leave.
Narrative 70 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/23/2023, 10:15

Synopsis :

Narrative :

On 01/23/2023 at about 0900 hours, | (Sgt P. Lee) received a phone call from ., bh ) who
sounded angry and wanted to know why the suspect was not charged for assaulting his son .

| explain to him that my partner (Sgt Onnen) and | came to Central HS the other day as part of our investigation. | told him that he
yelled at us and would not let us give any explanation.

| asked him if his son wanted to give a statement as to what his son did, heard and saw. He responded in an angry tone that his
son was there. | asked again if his son would be willing to give a statement or not. He responded that he wanted the suspect
charged for assaulting his son. He added if his son needed to talk to the police that "that's what it's gonna be."

He asked where we could meet so his son could talk to us. | told him the interview would have to take place at the SPPD HQ. He
responded by asking why the interview process could not have taken place at the SPPD HQ in the first place. | told him that "we"
were trying to track his his son down and time was of the essence in this case.

His voice started to go higher in yelling at me. | advised him that | did not want to get into an argument with him because he
already yelled at me and my partner. He responded "Yeah you know why?" and | cut him off. We started to talk over each other.
He accused me of talking over him and | told him it was he was talking over me.

| told him to set up a time so we could do the interview with his son at the SPPD HQ. He responded it would not be today because
they have something going on.

| told him to tell me what day/time of this week his son will be available to speak with us. He wanted to see how long the
conference at school last and would call me in the morning. | gave him my work cell phone number to call me. | also gave him Sgt
Onnen's direct office phone number to call as well. | asked if his son mothers (and who he identified as his wife) would be coming
as well and he responded "more than likely."
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The call with Gregory Cook was audio recorded and later uploaded to the media vault.

Narrative 71 Created by: LARSON, AMBER (384515) 01/23/2023, 12:11

Synopsis :

Narrative :

WITNESS INTERVIEW

1 /!
I
I

On 01/18/2023, 1, Sergeant Amber Larson interviewed witness, || ||| | | | | | } JEEEIE =t the st Pav! Police Department (367
Grove St) on the 2nd Floor in the Homicide Conference Room.

The interview was audio and video recorded and later uploaded into Axon (Evidence).
Here is a summary of the interview:

* They were walking from their school (Central Highschool) towards Jimmy Lee Rec Center and people were fighting along the

street.
« She and her friend,* walked up towards Jimmy Lee, however, could not get into the building because it was locked
due to the fight. She and her friend sat on the bench and was waiting for a ride.

* She said, “The dude that shot little boy, was telling us that we couldn’t go inside”. She also stated that he stood near the
entrance doors of Jimmy Lee to make sure the kids who were fighting didn’t come towards the building.

* A few people from the fight began to walk towards the entrance. The “dude” (Exavir) wouldn't let them in, however allowed
them out in front of the building. A female that was inside Jimmy Lee let her brother inside the building.

* She stated that (Exavir) didn’t allow that and told them, “Y’all goofy ass can get out here, and her goofy ass can get out of
here too”. The female and her brother both agreed to leave. Exavir continued to call them “bitches”.

« When | asked her who Exavir was, she stated, “He works there, and he was the one who shot the little boy”.

. Hnand (the little boy that got shot) approached Exavir and told him, “You don’t call them no bitches”. She
stated that Exavir had a gun he pulled from inside the front left chest pocket of his jacket, and said, “Come around the corner,
come around the corner”. She thought that Exavir must have had an inner pocket in his jacket near the chest. H
stated she witnessed Exavir pull the gun and she saw it. She stated she could see he had a gun but couldn’t see what color
it was.

+ She stated that was when her and her friends all got scared and ran towards the front doors of Jimmy Lee. The doors were
locked so they were banging on the doors. One of the employees let them in after they told her that Exavir had a gun and had
just pulled it out.

¢ The employee let them inside and they began to tell the female employee what happened. The female employee stated, “Are
you serious, | would have never thought he would do that”. m stated that Exavir is reckless, and they were not
surprised by his behavior. She stated a few minutes later, she didn't know where Exavir went because he walked off, but he
returned and was trying to get into the recreation center by pulling on the door. During this time, her and her friends ride
arrived, but they couldn’t leave because he was standing at the doors, and they were locked and not trying to let Exavir
inside.

. HandF were walking back up towards the building. msaid that Exavir started “pressing them again,
elling them I told you to come around the corner and saying reckless stuff’. This was when andH gave in,
and they all started arguing. She couldn’t hear what was being said, however they were up on the sidewalk/near stairs close
to the doors, and she could hear them yelling at each other.
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« Exavir was still holding his gun and they began walking towards the parking lot foIIowing- andm all were
still verbally arguing with one another. She stated that Exavir punched— in his face one time with his fist. and
then both jumped Exavir and they are all physically fighting. EXxavir then pulled out the gun and shot one time

itting

. F stated she witnessed Exavir shoot m and Exavir was had the black gun in his right hand. Exavir ran

outhwest on foot towards Central High School. e stated Exavir was wearing the following: ski mask, black jacket (Puffy),

black jeans, Jordan 12’'s, medium complexion, with “pretty, nice hazel eyes”. She stated he has dreads; however, you
couldn’t see them because he had the ski mask on.

. - did not know what_ sisters name.

W was shot, he dropped in the location he was shot. She didn’t see where he got shot and didn’t

¢ She state
approach

The interview concluded.

Narrative 72 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/23/2023, 13:12

Synopsis :
Narrative :
| (Sgt P. Lee) listened to the what | noted to be the first 911 call and summarized it as followed:

A hysterical female caller requested help to include an ambulance to the Jimmy Lee Rec Center/Oxford Community Center
because "somebody got shot." The female caller was cry and screaming as she gave information to the 911 dispatcher. The 911
dispatcher tried to calm the female caller down and ask pertinent questions as to what happened. The female caller responded with
calling the 911 caller a bitch, used the fuck or fucken profanity word as she screamed and stated "somebody got shot bitch.

The 911 dispatcher got the fire/medic dispatcher on the line with them and requested medics to respond to 270 Lexington Pkwy. In
the background the female caller who was still crying and screaming was heard saying the victim's name as Juvaughn.

The fire dispatcher asked the female caller about the rec center address which she confirmed. The female caller also confirmed her
phone number as and who also confirm she was with the patient referring toe victim. The female caller continued to
scream at the fire dispatcher and only answered some questions that were being asked. The fire dispatcher advised the female
caller that help was on the way.

The fire dispatcher asked the female caller if the person who shot the patient was still there. She responded the shooter ran away
and "he fucken ran."

The female caller did not know what part of the body the patient got shot but there was a lot of bleeding. She was asked and
responded the patient was alert, his head was injured, and it was just one wound.

The fire dispatcher advised help was on the way.
The fire dispatcher gave first aid instructions to the female caller who did not verbally respond and sobbed loudly back.

The 911 dispatcher got back on the line and asked questions about the shooting to the female caller who did not answer and
continued to sob. The female caller eventually answered and stated she saw the shooter.

The female caller identified the shooter by name as "Exavier" and who wore all black clothing. The female caller stopped
answering questions again and yelled out some inaudible words to include profanity at apparently someone around her.

Towards the end of the call and at about the four-minute mark, the female caller acknowledged she was with the police and the 911
dispatcher advised the dispatcher would be disconnecting the call.
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The audio for this 911 call is about 06:21 in duration. The first four minutes of the audio is related to this case. At about the 04:41,
the 911 dispatcher spoke to a male caller who called in about wanting to report a criminal damage to property incident that was not
related to this shooting incident. At about 06:11, the female caller from earlier called back and stated there were multiple people
there and she was trying to get them evacuated. It appeared she did not need further assistance at the rec center and the call was
disconnected.

This 911 audio was uploaded to the SPPD media vault and | titled it as the first 911 audio call with phone number_.

After listening this 911 call, | reviewed the names of the identified witnesses and noted the phone number_ to be
associated with witness (||| | I occ Il she as interviewed by Sgt J. Schwab and please see his
supplemental report.

The second 911 call will be summarized as followed:

The male caller stated to the 911 dispatcher 'we' were at the Jimmy Lee Rec Center and 'This dude just shot a kid."' and 'He just
killed a kid." The caller said 'he' referring to the shooter was fighting them and then shot them.

The 911 dispatcher advised that help was on the way. The dispatcher asked for the caller's phone number and the caller
responded that 'he' ran off referring to the shooter.

Louds screaming was heard in the background.

The 911 dispatcher appeared to try to connect the call with a fire/medic dispatcher however the caller could be heard saying 'He's
dead.' a couple of times.

The 911 dispatcher asked what was going on and the caller responded a worker was involved who was picking fights with the kids.
The caller added the worker argued with the kids and then shot him. The caller gave additional details by saying there were two
kids the worker was arguing with.

The 911 dispatcher asked the caller if he was with the person who got shot. The caller responded he was not and he was inside
the building. The caller added he was inside and watched the shooting happen outside. The caller was asked and responded
there were four or five people with the person who was shot.

The 911 dispatcher asked how old the person was that got shot. The caller responded someone stated the person shot is
breathing. The caller was asked for the age and gender of the person shot. The caller responded 'it was a boy, a sophomore in
school and about 15 years old. The caller continued to answer questions by saying the shooting just happened, they were in the
streets with the person shot and who was not moving.

The 911 dispatcher asked where the shooter was at the caller stated the shooter shot 'him' referring to the victim and ran away.
The caller added he knew what kind of vehicle the shooter drove and was asked for details regarding it. The caller then stated he
was handing the phone on his end to one of the workers.

A hysterical female got on the phone and stated she was inside the building. She was asked for details by the dispatcher and had
difficulty giving full answers as she remained hysterical. She screamed out something to the effect of 'He ran off.’ She was
reminded help was on the way and responded with a couple of 'Oh my God.'" She was asked additional questions and responded
the shooter was a 'CRS' and a director at this rec center. She went on to say an altercation happened, he got upset, they 'got off
with each other' and pulled out a gun. She added she was with the person who was shot (police sirens could be heard in the
background).

The dispatcher asked if anyone was putting pressure on the wound and the female screamed it out to ask on her end of the phone.
The female started sobbing, stated she was with the police and the call disconnected.

The second 911 call audio was about 04:09, uploaded and labeled as second 911 call audio into the media vault. | was not able to
locate the caller's phone number for this second 911 call at this time.

The SPPD radio traffic audio was uploaded to the media vault.
The ECC Incident Detail Report was uploaded to the media vault.

| asked D. Conway to check with the 911 ECC about possibly additional 911 calls made regarding this incident.
Narrative 73 Created by: LARSON, AMBER (384515) 01/23/2023, 13:36

Synopsis :
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Supplement Report
Narrative :
NO ICC/BWC AVAILABLE SQD #107

I, Sergeant T. Diaz am currently assigned to the western district as a patrol supervisor. On 01.18.23 at approximately 1612hrs,
multiple officers from the western district responded to the address of 270 Lexington Parkway N (Jimmy Lee Recreation Center) in
response to an aggravated assault complaint. Officers quickly arrived on-scene and located a male subject in the parking lot who
sustained a gunshot would to the head.

Upon my arrival on-scene, | assisted Sgt. Shead with securing the scene and assigning on-duty personnel to withesses and
designating officers to assist with the K9 track. The victim was quickly transported to Regions Hospital and was followed by
officers Tschida and Peterson, along with probationary officers Kreimer & Larkin.

As officers held the scene and located witnesses, other officers by working with Recreational Center staff were able to identify the
suspect and obtain home address and cellular phone information. That information was later used to locate the suspect as he
arrived back at his address in the eastern district. | later responded to Regions Hospital and it was determined the victim was in
critical condition and had been admitted for surgery.

Narrative 76 Created by: ONNEN, MATTHEW (515000) 01/24/2023, 13:10

about:blank

Synopsis :
Narrative :

I, Sgt M Onnen, received the medical records from Regions Hospital and St Paul Fire for ||| ] The records were
uploaded to the Media Vault.

Narrative 77 Created by: KOLODGE, PATRICK (358550) 01/24/2023, 15:55

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 1/18/23, | (Officer Kolodge), responded to the area of 270 N. Lexington Ave (Jimmy Lee Rec) on a report of a male shot in the
parking lot. | arrived and the victim had already been transported and crime scene tape had already been set up.

| assisted by checking nearby addresses for security cameras, securing the crime scene and attempting to identify any witnesses.

Inside the Rec Center | helped with escorting families and children to the exterior of the building and outside of the crime scene.

Narrative 78 Created by: RHIEL, MITCHELL (509849) 01/24/2023, 16:49

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 1/18/2023 at approximately 1612 hours, | Ofc Rhiel who am currently assigned to the St Paul Gang/Aspire Unit overheard a call
to for West District squads to respond to 247m Lexington Parkway N for a male who was shot in the head. Call comments stated it
occurred at the Jimmy Lee Rec Center and the shooter possibly ran back inside or towards the central high school.

I along with Officers Lokhorst and Cappechi responded from HQ. We arrived on scene and were tasked with assisting in keeping
scene security and making sure witnesses were identified.

| responded to the main entrance to find a group of people who stated they had been interviewed already. | went back outside
where | was waved down by a trooper from the MSP whom was on scene to assist. | directed him in the front door where he
located a juvenile and escorted him off the property with me assisting to make sure they did not walk near the crime scene. | went
back inside the Rec Center where | was handed the crime scene log which | signed.
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While on scene | overheard the suspect was taken into custody in the Eastern District and we responded to 1665 Stillwater Ave to
assist at the residence in case a search warrant was needed. We stayed at the residence until later released.

No further info at this time.

Narrative 79 Created by: LOKHORST, ROBERT (406600) 01/24/2023, 19:10

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 01/18/2023, | Officer Lokhorst, responded to the Jimmy Lee Rec Center (270 Lexington Parkway North) to assist with a
shooting. | arrived at the scene along with Officers Capecchi and Rhiel. At this time, it was believed the suspect had fled on foot
from the area and Canine Officer Conrad was requesting a contingent of on-duty SWAT officers to act as a cover team while he
searched the area with his canine partner. We met with Officer Conrad and other on-duty SWAT officers and assigned several
other SWAT officers to act as a cover team.

| then responded to the crime scene and made contact with Sergeants Diaz and Shead. | determined our assistance was needed
inside the Rec Center, where a large number of youth were still inside, some of them whom were witnesses to the shooting.
Inside, the youth who were withesses were separated from the rest of the group and monitored by officers. The scene was very
chaotic and the parents of many of the youth inside the rec center were beginning to arrive to pick up their children. | coordinated
with staff and other officers to have the parents pick up children at Iglehart and Oxford, directly east of the parking lot.

At some point, | heard Ramsey County deputies air they had taken the suspect into custody at his home address of 1663 Stillwater
Avenue. Gang Unit Officers Sand and Wanschura responded to this location. Myself, Officers Capecchi and Rhiel, and Sergeant
Rooney responded to this location to assist. Two family members of the suspect were transported to SPPD Headquarters to be
interviewed. We remained at 1663 Stillwater to secure the residence in case a follow-up search warrant was needed until we were
later told we could release the residence.

No further information at this time.

Narrative 80 Created by: RODRIGUEZ, SANTIAGO (580500) 01/25/2023, 07:33

Synopsis :

supplemental report.

Narrative :

I, sqd 132 Rodriguez, S. assisted Western sqds on an aggravated assault at the Jimmy Lee Recreation center.

As | was in patrol, | heard a call where someone was shot at the recreation center. fist comments were that the suspect left on foot.
| went to the area and assisted on setting on the perimeter.

Later | was advised to meet with Sgt Shead in the center to see where resources were going to be deployed.
| was later advised by Sgt. Shead that | could be released and EOT since the suspect was already in custody.

| signed the crime scene and left the scene.

Narrative 81 Created by: HULL, CORTEZ (303900) 01/25/2023, 08:12

about:blank

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On the date of 01-18-23, | responded to location of 270 Lexington Pkwy to assist with an aggravated assault. Upon my arrival, |
parked squad car on the East side of the parking lot. | observed the parking lot to be surrounded by crime scene tape. As the
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crowds began to gather, | stood inside the East and North sides of the crime scene tape. | maintained the scene and directed
citizens on how to get their children from the rec center.

| recognized Johnny Allen, the director of a youth program known as JK Movement. | asked Johnny if he had seen anything.
Johnny informed me kids had told him there had been a shooting. Johnny told me, he came out of the rec center, observed a
young man to be on the ground bleeding, and applied pressure to the wounds. Johnny continued until medics/police arrived.

When the suspect had been arrested and additional squads had arrived, | left the scene.

Narrative 82 Created by: ONNEN, MATTHEW (515000) 01/25/2023, 09:06

Synopsis :
Narrative :

I, Sgt M Onnen, requested and received a signed search warrant from the Honorable Judge Kellie Charles on 01-23-23 at 1245
hours to search the two iPhones recovered associated to Exavir Binford (item #1 and item #4).

| submitted a request to the SPPD Digitial Forensics to forensically exam the phones.

| later efiled the warrant.

Narrative 83 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/25/2023, 09:16

about:blank

Synopsis :
Narrative :

| (Sgt P. Lee) received the audio to the third 911 call which was about 03:08 in duration. | listened to it and noted some details as
followed:

-As soon as the 911 call was answered, the male caller was screaming out loud such as 'help me' and 'Jimmy Lee Rec Center." It
was hard for me to make out all of what the male caller was screaming out other then the mentioned phrases as well as 'What the
fuck.' and the rec center address. The male caller mentioned something about 'he fucking shot a kid.' a couple of times. The male
caller continued screaming and using profanity.

-The 911 dispatcher asked a couple of times who the shooter was, but the male caller continued screaming out loud with
sentences/words that | could not make out.

-The 911 dispatcher advised the male caller the police have been notified.
-The 911 dispatcher asked for the name of the person who was involved likely referring to the shooter. The male caller responded

,' he was bleeding out referring to the victim. It appeared to me because the male caller was in distressed that he
Ikely mistaken the questions from the 911 dispatcher about the shooter descriptions to that of of the victim.

-The 911 dispatcher asked for the race of the person (shooter) and the male caller responded he is Black male and 18 years old,
wearing a 'red gray black top sweater' and he was bleeding out.

-The 911 dispatcher asked the male caller for clarification if the person bleeding out was the shooter or the victim. The hysterical
male caller continued to scream and yelled out the name of . The male caller clarified while still screaming that
is the victim who he was with, and the shooter ran away.

-The 911 dispatcher asked the male caller to stay on the line as she summoned the fire/medical dispatcher who got on the line.

-The fire dispatcher asked the male caller to verify his phone number as * however he did not respond and inaudible
screaming in the background was heard. It should be noted | recognize e voice of this male caller to be witness !

and who earlier stated he used his work cell phone ([l to ca! 911. 1t was likely the dispatcher errore
when she repeated the male caller's phone number back to him.

-The fire dispatcher asked the male caller if he was with the person who got shot and he responded he was, and the person was
bleeding out.
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-The fire dispatcher asked the male caller to tell her what happened. The male caller responded he was 'out here.! There were a
bunch of fights and 'we' tried to break it up. The topic changed to the victim being rendered aid by other people at the scene.
There was another person at the scene who was also speaking with another 911 dispatcher. The male caller was advised this call
would be disconnected which he acknowledged as police sirens could be heard in the background.

| uploaded the audio 911 call to the media vault and title it as the third 911 call audio.

Narrative 84 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/25/2023, 10:52

Synopsis :
Narrative :

| (Sgt P. Lee) watched the surveillance video recovered from Central High School (275 Lexington Pkwy N) by VMU tech R.
Bertholf. The date on the video was 01/18/2023 with a run time of 1539 hours, to 1635 hours. The camera was labeled the
exterior front sidewalk which has coverages of the northeast and northwest portions of the intersection of Lexington/Marshal Ave.
The Jimmy Lee Rec Center is located at 270 Lexington Pkwy N and across the street to the east of the high school.

In watching the video from the start to the end of the mentioned run time, | observed the following.
-The video started at 1539 hours.

-At about 1615 hours, squads with emergency lights arrived and entered the rec center parking lot.
-At about 1626 hours, the SPFD medic rig was left the rec center.

-At about 1630 hours, a person was seen walking westbound on Marshall Ave from the rec center and out of view. The quality of
the video was not clear enough to get a description of this person.

-At about 1632 hours, three people were see waking westbound on Marshall Ave from the rec center and out of view. The quality
of the video was not clear enough to get description from these three people.

-The video ended at 1635 hours.

-Something of note was from about 1612 hours to 1635 hours, there were multiple people who walked from the west and possibly
the high school who went towards or to the rec center parking lot before moving out of view. The quality of the video was not clear
enough to get description from these people.

Narrative 85 Created by: CAPECCHI, MICHAEL (92251) 01/25/2023, 12:15

Synopsis :
Initial Response
Narrative :

On 01-18-2023 at 1612 hours, OFF CAPECCHI along with other members of the Gang Unit responded to 270 Lexington Pkwy on
a report of someone shot outside the rec center. Upon arriving, the scene had been secured and the victim had been already
transported from the scene.

Upon approaching the scene, | spoke with several juveniles who stated that they did not witness the incident but exited the lower
gym to find the chaotic scene in the parking lot. None of the parties | spoke with had any information not he victim, suspect, or
anyone involved.

| signed into the crime scene log and later left to assist on securing the home of the suspect.

Narrative 86 Created by: ONNEN, MATTHEW (515000) 01/25/2023, 14:52

Synopsis :

about:blank 56/137
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Narrative :

I, Sgt M Onnen, received a copy from the SPPD Video Management Unit of the requested bus video from Metro Transit. All times
listed are from bus 1339 on 01-18-23 and are video time stamps.

At 1627 hours the bus is traveling east on Selby approaching Dunlap where it stops to pick Exavir up on the south side of Selby on
the west side of Dunlap. Exavir gets on the bus and sits on the left side of the bus near the rear. At one point a cell phone is seen
in Exavir’s right hand.

The bus continues east on Selby to Summit where it turns left to go north on Summit. The bus continues north on Summit to
Kellogg where it turns right to go east on Kellogg. The bus continues east on Kellogg where it turns left to go northeast on Smith.
The bus continues northeast on Smith where it turns right to go east on 5th St. The bus continues east on 5th St until it stops on
5th St between Wabasha and Cedar. At 1650 hours at this location the bus stops on the south curb and Exavir exits the front door
of the bus. Exavir then walks/runs east on 5th St and crosses over Cedar still on the south side of 5th St. Once Exavir crosses
over Cedar he turns on the path to go southeast from 5th and Cedar. Exavir is no longer seen from this location on the bus video.

It should be noted that the bus stopped at numerous locations to drop people off and pick people up along the above route but
Exavir remained in his seat. Exavir did not appear to interact with anyone on the bus. Exavir was wearing the same clothing that
he was arrested in and the rip on the right side of his coat was visible along with the red shirt underneath.

| next reviewed St Paul Police Department CCTV. All times listed are from 01-18-23 and are video time stamps.
5th and Cedar camera

At 1639 hours a vehicle later identified to be the 2007 gray Chevrolet Equinox with MN plate KAF634 being driven by, and owned
by, Regina Hicks drives north on Minnesota and parks on the west side of the street between 5th St and 4th St.

At 1651 hours Exavir is seen crossing east over the light rail tracks near the southeast corner of 5th and Cedar to walk east on the
south side of 5th St between Cedar and Minnesota. He continues east on 5th St approaching Minnesota passing by the bus
shelter (seen on 5th and Minnesota camera)

At 1652 hours Exavir is seen walking south on Minnesota from 5th St approaching the parked Chevrolet Equinox. He enters the
front passenger seat. The vehicle immediately drives away north on Minnesota towards 5th St. It is unknown where it went from
there before it eventually arrived at 1663 Stillwater.

| took still pictures from the videos and uploaded them to the Media Vault.

Narrative 87 Created by: SIEGFRIED, ADAM (636450) 01/25/2023, 14:56

about:blank

Synopsis :
Narrative :

I, Sgt A. Siegfried, am currently assigned to the Criminal Intelligence Unit. My job duties include, but not limited to, performing
digital forensics on media devices that that can hold electronic data. | perform forensics exams on cellular phones, tablets/iPads,
computers, vehicles, external storage devices etc. | have been performing digital forensics for the St Paul Police Dept for that last
10 years.

On 01/09/23 Sgt Onnen requested a forensic exam of two cellular phones.

The request was made under CN 23.009.924

The investigator attached a signed search warrant authorizing the search of the cellular phones.

| perform phone/tablets/iPads/iPods exams by using the lab's hardware (Cellebrite UFED4PC software and UFED Physical
Analyzer) 'Universal Forensic Extraction Device (UFED) is designed to meet the challenges of unveiling the massive amount of
data stored in the modern mobile device. The UFED Series is able to extract, decode,analyze and report data from thousands of

mobile devices, including, smartphones, legacy and feature phones, portable GPS devices, tablets, memory cards and phones
manufactured with Chinese chipsets.'

| will also utilize the 'GrayKey' software made by GrayShift to process locked and sometimes unlocked iPhones (serial#

| examined item #1
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scene security, officers aired that the suspect was in custody.

Shortly afterwards, dispatched aired that they had a assist medical agency call involving a deceased person that had been pending
for awhile. | then walked up to Sgt. Shead and volunteered to take the assist medic medical agency call which later turned out to
be a death investigation.

Nothing further at this time.

Narrative 92 Created by: BERTHOLF, RICHARD (50152) 01/29/2023, 19:18

Synopsis :
VMU collection report; Metro Transit
Narrative :

|, Data Release Specialist BERTHOLF, am currently assigned to the Video Management Unit, a division of the Technology Unit. |
am also a LEVA Certified Forensic Video Technician.

Part of my duties include being asked by investigators to assist in locating and exporting DVR surveillance video, SPPD CCTV
footage, SPPD squad In Car Camera (ICC) footage, and SPPD Officer Body Worn Camera (BWC) footage.

Regarding this case, | received a request from Sgt. M. ONNEN to assist with downloading and preserving video footage from Metro
Transit PD.

On 2023/01/20, | received an email from Axon alerting me that MTPD had shared Case MC23000575 containing video data. |
downloaded the data to my department issued desktop computer. | then transferred the two (2) .exe files & extracted the .zip file
data to a USB Flash Drive.

| reviewed the provided footage and saved still images to a new folder on the USB Flash Drive. The still images were created using
the proprietary player included with the footage.

| used the computer program MD5summer to generate a HASH report for all the data on the USB Flash Drive.

| burned the data to a DVD and turned it in to Property. | also made a copy for the Investigator.

Narrative 93 Created by: BERTHOLF, RICHARD (50152) 01/29/2023, 19:21

Synopsis :
VMU collection report; CCTV.
Narrative :

|, Data Release Specialist BERTHOLF, am currently assigned to the Video Management Unit, a division of the Technology Unit. |
am also a LEVA Certified Forensic Video Technician.

Part of my duties include being asked by investigators to assist in locating and exporting DVR surveillance video, SPPD CCTV
footage, SPPD squad In Car Camera (ICC) footage, and SPPD Officer Body Worn Camera (BWC) footage.

Regarding this case, | received a request from Sgt. M. ONNEN to assist with downloading and preserving CCTV video footage.

On 2023/01/29, | reviewed and downloaded CCTV footage and saved still images to a USB Flash Drive. The still images were
created using the proprietary player included with the footage.

| used the computer program MD5summer to generate a HASH report for all the data on the USB Flash Drive.

| burned the data to a DVD and turned it in to Property. | also made a copy for the Investigator.

Narrative 94 Created by: ONNEN, MATTHEW (515000) 01/31/2023, 07:28

about:blank 60/137
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Narrative :

On 04/21/2023, | (Sgt P. Lee) wrote a search warrant in E-charging for the suspect's employment file from the City of St Paul and
submitted it to the Honorable Ramsey County Judge Kraus. The search warrant was reviewed and electronically signed by the AM
signing judge, the Honorable Judge T. Carey at about 1148 hours.

At about 1300 hours, Sgt M. Onnen and | went to the office of the St Paul Parks and Rec (15 Kellogg Blvd W) and turned over a
copy of the search warrant to the Public Service Manager (Clare Cloyd). We then went to the City of St Paul Human Resource
office and turned over a copy of the search warrant to Office Assistant (Emily Horvath) who advised she will forward the search
warrant to (Kristen Bubel).

Narrative 99 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 06/15/2023, 09:07

about:blank

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 06/13/2023, | (Sgt P. Lee) received an email from Sue Wegwert from the City of St Paul HR that contained an attachment to
three videos which | uploaded to the media vault. The videos are part of the search warrant signed by the Honorable Ramsey
County Judge T. Carey on 04/21/2023 and executed on the same date at the City of St Paul HR and St Paul Parks and Rec HR in
relation to the suspect Exavier Bindford's work file. | previously received some documents via email from the City of St Paul HR
and these videos were not provided at that time. See other supplemental reports.

I will describe and note the three videos received as follow.

Video #1, Arlington Hills 12.3.19-Front Lobby Doors:

-The video is about 5:23 in duration.

- No date and times on the video.

-The visitor (male wearing a light color hooded sweatshirt and black pants) exited the first set of doors with Exavier Binford (all dark
clothing) following a few steps behind. Both exited out the second set of doors and goes outside.

-Moments later, Binford came back inside, and the visitor eventually comes back inside as well. Both walked out of view of this
camera.

-At about 1:07, BINFORD was seen in view of the camera being physically restrained by an unidentified rec center employee. Both
moved out of view.

-At about 1:14, BINFORD and the visitor were seen coming back into view grabbing each other with BINFORD seen swinging what
looked to be a punch. Both are struggle with each other as the unidentified employee paced around and who tried to intervene. All
three moved out of view of the camera.

-At about 1:23, two unidentified males were able to separate BINFORD and the visitor as they came back into view of the camera.
-At about 1:58, the unidentified employee and the two unidentified males escorted the visitor out of the building.

-At about 4:26, the visitor came back into the building.

Video #2, Arlington Hills 12.3.19-Front Parking Lot:

-The video is about 7:03 in duration.

-No date and times on the video.

-The camera covers the exterior front doors and overview of the front parking lot.

-At about 42 seconds into the video, the visitor was seen walking out of the rec center building with BINFORD following on foot a
few steps behind him.

-BINFORD turned back around and walked back into the building. The visitor turned around and started walking back to the
building.

Video #3, Arlington Hills 12.3.19-Main Desk Entrance:
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-The video is about 6:42 in duration.

- No date and times on the video.

-The camera covers the interior entrance of the front doors.

-The visitor was seen walking by the front desk about 16 seconds into the video.

-The visitor paced around and heads for the front doors and he was followed by BINFORD. Both walked outside and out of view of
this camera.

-At about 1:00, BINFORD came back into the rec center building.

-At about 1:13, the visitor came back into the building as well and his attention appeared to be directed to the unidentified
employees at the front desk.

-At about 1:20, BINFORD approached the visitor with an unidentified employee standing in between them. It should be noted that
as BINFORD approached the visitor, he was seen grabbing the waist area of his pants to adjust his pants. From my training and
experience, | know this body language and action to be a pre assault/fight indicator.

-At about 1:22, BINFORD started to go after the visitor with the unidentified employee trying to stop him. BINFORD then threw a
closed fist punch with his right hand at the visitor which connected. The visitor tried to duck with BINFORD throwing another punch
with his left hand that connected on the visitor. The visitor tried to fight back and was pulled back by the unidentified employee who
tried to break up the altercation. BINFORD had ended up on the ground, got back up on his feet and threw another punch at the
visitor which connected. Two unidentified males and the unidentified employee were able to interview and stop BINFORD from
assaulting the visitor. BINFORD still struggled to break free from their hold to try to go after the visitor before stopping and walking
away. The visitor was escorted outside by the unidentified males.

-At about 5:56, the visitor reentered the building.

Narrative 100 Created by: LEE, PENG (391860) 01/16/2024, 10:13

about:blank

Synopsis :
Narrative :

On 05/25/2023, | (Sgt P. Lee) received what | believed to be some of the requested property or things listed in the signed search
warrant from the City of St Paul HR via email. There was a total of 16 separate email attachments | received. In a preliminary
review of the attachments related to the suspect and former City of St Paul employee's (Exavier Bindford) work file, | noted some of
the following details. It should be noted the received document attachments were uploaded to the media vault. Please see the
media vault for additional details.

Attachment one:
-St Paul Parks & Rec letter dated 05/01/2023 and addressed to Exavier Binford's Union Rep about Binford's grievance.
Attachment two:

-St Paul Parks & Rec letter dated 02/18/2020 to BINFORD to advise him that he was suspended five working days. The reason for
the suspension stated on 12/03/2019 while working at the Arlington Hill Community Center, he became involved in a physical
altercation with a participant in the front lobby, 'you threw punches at the participant and had to be restrained by Recreation staff.'
Additionally, it was expected of him when returning from his suspension that he refrains from any physical altercations while on

duty.

-Work Place Incident Investigation at Arlington Hills Community Center. Date of incident as 12/03/02019, date of investigation
01/29/2020. The complainant was Office Assistant Zachry Gilman and the respondents were Community Recreation Specialist
Thao Vue and Community Rec Director Kate Ross. GILMAN submitted his resignation and one of his reasons included was the
incident where BINFORD was involved in a physical altercation with a visitor. It was described as management attempted to
'sweep the incident under the rug." The physical altercation involving BINFORD was not reported to higher up for more than a
week.

Attachment three:

-Nothing of apparent note.
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